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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K/A

Amendment No. 2

M ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2004
OR

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to
Commission file number 1-4221

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its @rart

Delaware 73-0679879
(State or other jurisdiction of Incorporation or (I.LR.S. employer identification
organization’ no.)
1437 S. Boulder Ave., Suite 1400, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74119-3623
(Address of principal executive office (Zip code)
Registrant’s telephone number, including area code (918) 742-5531

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(hefct:

Title of Each Clas Name of Exchange on Which Registe
Common Stock ($0.10 par value) New York Stock Exchange
Common Stock Purchase Rigl New York Stock Exchang

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(ghefct: None

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant éE)filed all reports required to be filed by Seeti® or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (orsfiech shorter period that the Registrant was reduadile such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the pastlags. Yesv No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiilers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is aontained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of the Registrant’s knowdedy definitive proxy or information statementsanporated by reference in Part 11l of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10EK.

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant ia@relerated filer (as defined in Exchange Act Rizle-2). YesM No O
At March 31, 2004, the aggregate market value ®iting stock held by non-affiliates was $1,378,985.

Number of shares of common stock outstanding aeBéer 3, 2004: 50,610,9:
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Explanatory Note

This Amendment No. 2 to Form 10-K is being filedatnend the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-KHerfiscal year ended
September 30, 2004, filed on December 13, 2004"“@niginal 10-K”) as amended by Amendment No. the Original 10-K filed on
February 11, 2005 (“Amendment No. 1"). This Amendindo. 2 is being filed solely for the following gaoses:

1. To restate all of the comparative, year#anfinancial data for the Company’s Real Estatésidin contained in the table on page 28
of the Annual Report filed as Exhibit 13 to the ak0-K. The original table incorrectly repeated financial data contained in a

similar table on page 24 of the Annual Rep

2. In addition, also filed herewith are the followieghibits:
13 The Compan’'s Annual Report to Shareholders for fiscal 2004 €ftect the amendment described abo

23.1 Consent of Independent Audito
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer, as adopeursuant to Section 302 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer, as adogtpursuant to Section 302 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 2002

32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer afhief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 8attl350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 2002

This Amendment No. 2 does not otherwise alter thelasures set forth in the Original 10-K or AmeraithNo. 1.
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PART IV

Item 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, A ND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

a) 1. Financial StatementsThe following appear in the Company’s Annual Rejat the pages indicated below and are
incorporated herein by referent

Report of Independent Audito 39
Consolidated Statements of Income for the YeareB&eptember 30, 2004, 2003 and 2 40
Consolidated Balance Sheets at September 30, 2@D2093 41-42
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity for the Years Ended September 30, 2004, 20@3200: 43
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Yeaded September 30, 2004, 2003 and - 44
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem 45-67
2. Financial Statement Schedutesll schedules are omitted as inapplicable or heeahe required information is contained in

the financial statements or included in the ndtesdto.

3. Exhibits. The following documents are included as exhitaittis Form 10-K. Exhibits incorporated by refererherein are
duly noted as such. Unless so noted, each exhgifiled herewith

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation and AmendnterRestated Certificate of Incorporation of ther@any
are incorporated herein by reference to Exhibitd.the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K to the
Securities and Exchange Commission for fiscal 18 File No. 00-04221.

3.2 Amended and Restated By-Laws of the Company argpocated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of the
Company'’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q to the 8tes and Exchange Commission for the quarter énde
March 31, 2002, SEC File No. C-04221.

41 Rights Agreement dated as of January 8, 1996, leettiee Company and The Liberty National Bank and

Trust Company of Oklahoma City, N.A. is incorporhteerein by reference to the Company’s Fori, 8atec
January 18, 1996, SEC File No. (-04221.
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*10.1 Consulting Services Agreement between W. H. Helohelil, and the Company effective January 1, 1980,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.&hef Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K to the
Securities and Exchange Commission for fiscal 1S#8; File No. 00-04221.

*10.2 Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for SalarieplByees of Helmerich & Payne, Inc. is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of the Compamnnual Report on Form 10-K to the Securities and
Exchange Commission for fiscal 1996, SEC File Niil-04221.

*10.3 Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 1990 Stock Option Plamisorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.#hef
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K to the Semsiand Exchange Commission for fiscal 1996, SEC
File No. 00:-04221.

*10.4 Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement for #890 Stock Option Plan is incorporated by refeecio
Exhibit 99.2 to the Compa’s Registration Statement No.-55239 on Form -8, dated August 26, 199

*10.5 Supplemental Savings Plan for Salaried Employeésetrherich and Payne, Inc. is incorporated hergin b
reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Company’s Annuap&t on Form 10-K to the Securities and Exchange
Commission for fiscal 1999, SEC File No. (-04221.

*10.6 Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 1996 Stock Incentive Pmcorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 98.the
Compan’s Registration Statement No. -34939 on Form -8 dated September 4, 19¢

*10.7 Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement for thelmerich & Payne, Inc. 1996 Stock
Incentive Plan is incorporated by reference to Bitl99.2 to the Compang’Registration Stateme
No. 33334939 on Form -8 dated September 4, 19¢

*10.8 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for the Helnte&cPayne, Inc. 1996 Stock Incentive Plan is
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to tleenPany’s Annual Report on Form 10-K to the Seoesiti
and Exchange Commission for fiscal 1997, SEC Fde 00-04221.

*10.9 Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2000 Stock Incentive PRincorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 96.the
Compan’s Registration Statement No. -63124 on Form -8 dated June 15, 20C

*10.1C Form of Agreements for Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2@16ck Incentive Plan being (i) Restricted Stockahs
Agreement, (ii) Incentive Stock Option Agreemend &iii) Nonqualified Stocl
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*10.11

*10.12

10.1

10.1¢4

10.1¢

10.1¢€

*10.17

10.1¢

Option Agreement are incorporated by referencextdlit 99.2 to the Company’s Registration Statement
No. 33363124 on Form -8 dated June 15, 20C

Form of Director Nonqualified Stock Option Agreerhéor the 2000 Helmerich & Payne, Inc. Stock
Incentive Plan is incorporated herein by referandexhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Quarterly Repart o
Form 10-Q to the Securities and Exchange Commidsiothe quarter ended June 30, 2002, SEC File
No. 002-04221.

Form of Change of Control Agreement for HelmericliP&yne, Inc. is incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 of the Company’s Quarterly Report @R 10-Q to the Securities and Exchange Commission
for the quarter ended June 30, 2002, SEC File Rt-04221.

Second Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated aslpflb, 2002, by and among Helmerich & Payne
International Drilling Co., Helmerich & Payne, Irand Bank One, Oklahoma, N.A. is incorporated Inelogi
reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Company’s Quayt&éport on Form 10-Q to the Securities and Exchang
Commission for the quarter ended June 30, 2002, SEEQNo. 00-04221.

Credit Agreement, dated as of July 16, 2002, antéelgnerich & Payne International Drilling Co., Helrigh
& Payne, Inc., the several lenders from time taetjparty thereto, and Bank of Oklahoma, National
Association is incorporated herein by referencExbibit 10.5 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q to the Securities and Exchange Commidsiothe quarter ended June 30, 2002, SEC File
No. 002-04221.

Note Purchase Agreement dated as of August 15,,200@ng Helmerich & Payne International Drilling.C
Helmerich & Payne, Inc. and various insurance carigsais incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.20 of the Company’s Annual Report onrRdrOK to the Securities and Exchange Commissiol
fiscal 2002, SEC File No. 0-04221.

Office Lease dated May 30, 2003, between K/B Fuhdnd Helmerich & Payne, Inc. is incorporated herei
by reference to Exhibit 10.18 of the Company’s AalrfReport on Form 10-K to the Securities and Exglean
Commission for fiscal 2003, SEC File No. (-04221.

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. Director Deferred CompeimsaPlan is incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 of the Compar's Form &K filed on September 9, 200

Shareholders Agreement and Registration Rightseékgent dated July 19, 2004 between Helmerich & P
International Drilling Co
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10.1¢

*10.2C

13.

21.

23.1

31.1

31.2

32

and Atwood Oceanics, Inc. is incorporated hereimdigrence to Exhibit 1.1 of the Company’s Amended
Schedule 13D filed on July 21, 20(

Underwriting Agreement dated October 13, 2004, betwHelmerich & Payne International Drilling Codan
various underwriters is incorporated herein byneriee to Exhibit 1.1 of the Company’s Form 8-Kdilen
October 14, 200¢

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. Annual Bonus Plan for Exe®uOfficers is incorporated herein by refererze t
Exhibit 10.1 of the Compar's Form K filed on December 6, 200

The Compan’'s Annual Report to Shareholders for fiscal 2(

List of Subsidiaries of the Company is incorporatedein by reference to Exhibit 21 of the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K to the Securities andHaxge Commission for fiscal 2003, SEC File No.-001
04221.

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer, as AdodtPursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-OxleyfAct
2002.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer, as Adopt®ursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley#Act
2002.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chieinancial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section(,3&
Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sark-Oxley Act of 2002

* Management or Compensatory Plan or Arrangen

b) Reports on Form-K

The Company filed two reports on Form 8-K dgrthe last quarter of fiscal 2004

as follows:

e Form 8-K dated July 22, 2004, containing esBrRelease with attached Unaudited Consolidatadelsed Balance Sheets,
Consolidated Statements of Income and Financiall&es- Lines of Business, announcing the Compathyisl quarter 2004

earnings

* Form 8-K dated September 2, 2004, disclodiegapproval by the Company’s Board of Directorthef Helmerich & Payne, Inc.
Director Deferred Compensation Plan, to becomectffe October 1, 200«
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Comraas duly caused this Report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized:

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.

By: /sl Hans Helmeric|

Hans Helmerich, President and Chief
Executive Officel

Date: March 16, 200!
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS
Exhibits incorporated by reference herein are dled as such. Unless so noted, each exhibieid fierewith.

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation and Anmeedt to Restated Certificate of Incorporation & @ompany are incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Company’s Annuap&e on Form 10-K to the Securities and Exchange@ssion for fiscal 1996, SEC File
No. 002-04221.

3.2 Amended and Restated By-Laws of the Companinacgporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.2hef Companys Quarterly Report ¢
Form 10-Q to the Securities and Exchange Commidsiothe quarter ended March 31, 2002, SEC File00d.-04221.

4.1 Rights Agreement dated as of January 8, 198@den the Company and The Liberty National Bark Brust Company of Oklahoma
City, N.A. is incorporated herein by referencelte Company’s Form 8-A, dated January 18, 1996, BileCNo. 001-04221.

*10.1 Consulting Services Agreement between W. elmrich, Ill, and the Company effective Januarg990, is incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company’s AnnuapBrt on Form 10-K to the Securities and Exchanga@ission for fiscal 1996, SEC
File No. 001-04221.

*10.2 Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for $ataEmployees of Helmerich & Payne, Inc. is incagted herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.6 of the Company’s Annual Report on FdiaK to the Securities and Exchange Commissioffisoal 1996, SEC File No. 001-
04221.

*10.3 Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 1990 Stock OptionrPaincorporated herein by reference to Exhibi71df the Companyg Annual Report ¢
Form 10-K to the Securities and Exchange Commisiipfiscal 1996, SEC File No. 001-04221.

*10.4 Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreemeatt the 1990 Stock Option Plan is incorporated ligresmce to Exhibit 99.2 to the
Company’s Registration Statement No. 33-55239 amF®-8, dated August 26, 1994.

*10.5 Supplemental Savings Plan for Salaried Engdsyof Helmerich and Payne, Inc. is incorporatedihdy reference to Exhibit 10.9 to
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K to theuiies and Exchange Commission for fiscal 1999C$He No. 001-04221.

*10.6 Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 1996 Stock IncentRian is incorporated herein by reference to ExI@iBifl to the Company’s Registration
Statement No. 333-34939 on Form S-8 dated Septefnld®97.

*10.7 Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreemeatt the Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 1996 Stock IncentNan is incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 99.2 to the Company’s Registration Staat No. 333-34939 on Form S-8 dated Septembed3%,.1

*10.8 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for thdrkirich & Payne, Inc. 1996 Stock Incentive Plamrporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.12 to the Company’s Annual Report onrrdi0-K to the Securities and Exchange Commissioffigoal 1997, SEC File No. 001-
04221.

*10.9 Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2000 Stock IncentiRian is incorporated herein by reference to ExI@iBifl to the Company’s Registration
Statement No. 333-63124 on Form S-8 dated JungQr4.,.

*10.10 Form of Agreements for Helmerich & Payne;.1B000 Stock Incentive Plan being (i) Restrictéacs Award Agreement,
(i) Incentive Stock Option Agreement and (iii) Npralified Stock Option Agreement are incorporatgadference to Exhibit 99.2 to the
Company’s Registration Statement No. 333-63124@mFS-8 dated June 15, 2001.

*10.11 Form of Director Nonqualified Stock Optiorgeement for the 2000 Helmerich & Payne, Inc. Stockentive Plan is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the ComparQuarterly Report on Form 10-Q to the Securitiess Bxchange Commission for the
guarter ended June 30, 2002, SEC File No. 001-04221
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*10.12 Form of Change of Control Agreement for Hefioh & Payne, Inc. is incorporated herein by reffiee to Exhibit 10.3 of the
Company'’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q to the 8#es and Exchange Commission for the quarter éddee 30, 2002, SEC File
No. 001-04221.

10.13 Second Amendment to Credit Agreement, datexd auly 16, 2002, by and among Helmerich & Payternational Drilling Co.,
Helmerich & Payne, Inc. and Bank One, Oklahoma,.NsAncorporated herein by reference to Exhibigldéf the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q to the Securities and Exch&@wamission for the quarter ended June 30, 2002, SEEQNo. 001-04221.

10.14 Credit Agreement, dated as of July 16, 286#)ng Helmerich & Payne International Drilling Cdglmerich & Payne, Inc., the several
lenders from time to time party thereto, and Bah®klahoma, National Association is incorporatedelie by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q to the 8&ea and Exchange Commission for the quarter éddee 30, 2002, SEC File

No. 00-04221.

10.15 Note Purchase Agreement dated as of Augyu&0l®, among Helmerich & Payne International BrjlCo., Helmerich & Payne, Inc.
and various insurance companies is incorporategithby reference to Exhibit 10.20 of the Compamyrsmual Report on Form 10-K to the
Securities and Exchange Commission for fiscal 2@EX; File No. 001-04221.

10.16 Office Lease dated May 30, 2003, betweeniBd 1V and Helmerich & Payne, Inc. is incorporatedein by reference to
Exhibit 10.18 of the Company’s Annual Report onRdrO-K to the Securities and Exchange Commissiofigoal 2003, SEC File No. 001-
04221.

*10.17 Helmerich & Payne, Inc. Director Deferredn@mensation Plan is incorporated herein by referémé&shibit 10.1 of the Company’s
Form 8-K filed on September 9, 2004.

10.18 Shareholders Agreement and Registration Riygteement dated July 19, 2004 between Helmeri€agne International Drilling Co.
and Atwood Oceanics, Inc. is incorporated hereimdbgrence to Exhibit 1.1 of the Compasy®mended Schedule 13D filed on July 21, 2!

10.19 Underwriting Agreement dated October 13, 20@4wveen Helmerich & Payne International Drilli@g. and various underwriters is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1.thef Company’s Form 8-K filed on October 14, 2004.

*10.20 Helmerich & Payne, Inc. Annual Bonus PlanExecutive Officers is incorporated herein by refece to Exhibit 10.1 of the
Company'’s Form 8-K filed on December 6, 2004.

13. The Company’s Annual Report to Shareholder§isoal 2004.

21. List of Subsidiaries of the Company is incogted herein by reference to Exhibit 21 of the ComyfsaAnnual Report on Form 10-K to
the Securities and Exchange Commission for fis8B2 SEC File No. 001-04221.

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Attog Firm.
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer, asiédpted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanesy@xdeof 2002.
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer, agiépted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanegy@dt of 2002.

32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and @hFinancial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Secti880, as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

* Management or Compensatory Plan or Arrangen






EXHIBIT 13

Helmerich & Payne, Inc.
ANNUAL REPORT FOR FISCAL 2004




Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

Helmerich & Payne, Inc.is the holding Company for Helmerich & Payne Intgional Drilling Co., an international drilling ctractor with
land and offshore platform operations in the Uniitates, South America, Africa, and Europe. Holdiatpo include commercial real estate
properties in the Tulsa, Oklahoma, area and arggneeighted portfolio of publicly-traded securitiealued at approximately $241 million as
of September 30, 2004.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Years Ended September 3( 2004 2003

(in thousands, except per share amounts)
Revenue: $ 620,92 $ 515,28«
Net Income 4,35¢ 17,87:
Diluted Earnings per Sha .0¢ .35
Dividends Paid per Sha .32¢ .32
Capital Expenditure 88,97: 246,30:
Total Assets 1,406,84 1,417,77




To the Co-owners
of Helmerich & Payne, Inc.:

When | worked on my first Annual Report twenty-thigears ago, that publication was the single nmpbrtant way we communicated to
shareholders. A popular staple back then was misdrésident’s Letter. He started a tradition afijag a wideranging commentary back
the 1960s, and after he retired, | picked up alaimaipproach with my first letter in 1990. Over frears, | tackled a range of issues that bear
on all U.S. public companies, including common edion, double taxation, executive compensation,earatgy policy. | always enjoyed
readers’ feedback and particularly remember medtiaguthor of the most famous President’s Lefgatren Buffet, who recommended to
me that | turn the task back to my predecessort’d ha offer our Chairman continues to turn dowaohegear, although it still gets a laugh
between us.

Over these same years, the role of the Annual Répsrchanged significantly. Its importance asraroanication tool has given way to more
timely webcasts and conference calls, strict dsaies and legal requirements, and the broad userefasingly popular and accessible
websites. Along with a growing number of public gmanies, we have combined our Annual Report withl@4K filing as a cost-effective
approach to compliance.

This letter will change as this document continigesvolve. Before summarizing our operations fad20d want to thank our employees for
delivering outstanding field performance duringhaltenging year.




Contract Drilling Operations

Crude olil prices surged during the last half of £0€rasing previous records and reaching past 86barrel. Additionally, natural gas prices
remained resilient in 2004, even in the face obrdcstorage inventories heading into the 2004-2@&8ing season. In short, our customers
have not experienced a healthier commodity pricérenment in decades. According to statistics cdetpby Baker Hughes, average rig
activity improved world-wide by approximately 13rpent in 2004, with nearly three quarters of thim gaming in the U.S. land market.
Almost half of the world’s active rigs are in theSJland market, which at year-end had 1,129 actiys&e compared with 967 at the end of
2003. In sharp contrast, the U.S. offshore markntioued to soften and ultimately translated ingdgmificant negative impact on this year’s
financial results.

U.S. Offshore Operations

After 20 years of steady performance, the Compasysuffered in recent years through an industryewdiolwnturn in activity levels for
conventional water depths, where the majority ef@ompany’s offshore platform rigs operate. WHilie segment appears to have stabilized,
the Company took a $51.5 million non-cash assetimgent charge against the carrying value of itf GuMexico platform rigs, reflecting

our continued expectation that any recovery in $eistor will be slow. The Company retired one affehplatform rig at
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the end of 2004, leaving 11 rigs in the fleet, vahige believe are the newest and best availableein tlass in the Gulf of Mexico market. At
yeal-end, three rigs were working on full day rates) tigs were on standby rates, and six rigs werdadbla for work.

International Operations

Significant improvements in Venezuela and Argentasawell as operations in Hungary and Equatoriah€a, helped bolster performance in
2004. On average, the Company had five more rig&ing in 2004 than in 2003, resulting in a 39 petdacrease in revenue days. Including
a $1.7 million insurance settlement, revenues amed 37 percent and operating profit climbed torfillon compared with $5.1 million in
2003. Activity in Venezuela increased by over thiigs in 2004, and at the close of the year, nige were running, with a tenth likely to
commence in January 2005. After Venezuela, Ecuisdbe second strongest market for the CompanyputtSAmerica. At year-end, the
Company had seven rigs operating there, and artheligts a letter of intent to begin operations icéeber 2004. Colombia had very weak
activity in 2004, but at the close of the year, dgehad returned to work, and the Company receavésdter of intent to return a second rig to
work in December 2004. International operationSauth America strengthened measurably in 2004yatidthe return of four older rigs to
the U.S. and new contracts in Venezuela, EcuaddrColombia, the

4




Company anticipates that it will have 23 rigs oluRd rigs working by the end of the first quartérfiecal 2005.

The Company'’s first international FlexRig*, workimgHungary, should work through the first fiscalagter of 2005. The Company
completed a multi-well contract in Chad using gsand international FlexRig during the year, arat tig has since returned to the U.S. fleet
and is working in central Florida. The Company aames to actively prospect in other regions ofuiloeld for attractive growth opportunities,
principally in areas where FlexRig technology carabplied to add considerable value.

U.S. Land Operations

In July, the U.S. land rig count surpassed theiptsvhigh mark set in 2001, and activity continteegrow. The Company added ten net rig
years to its fleet capacity during 2004 and work&dnore rig years than in 2003. Revenues and dastiricreased 27 and 48 perce
respectively, and operating profit doubled tha2@d3. At the close of the year, the Company haddgravailable to the market, 80 of which
were working. FlexRig utilization during 2004 wa$ Bercent, compared with 73 percent for the Comigareynaining fleet. The Company
completed its FlexRig3 construction project, ddiivg the 32nd FlexRig3 at the end of March. Flex3Rigave drilled almost 500 wells,

73 percent of which were drilled under or on thetomers’ planned drilling time. In further recogmit of the superior value, half of the

* The term"FlexRic” used throughout this Annual Report is a Compargetrzark Registered in the U.S. Patent and Trade@#ite.
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FlexRig3 fleet is being used to drill directionadpre technically difficult wells compared to an eage of 26 percent for the industry fleet.
FlexRig3 is setting the industry pace in pricingha20 out of 32 FlexRig3s currently contracted B¢,$00 per day or higher. The counter
cyclical investment made in the FlexRig has striatdly positioned the Company by doubling its Uc8pacity and by demonstrating a clear
performance differential to the customer. Fortyena our 50 FlexRigs are located in the U.S. anltighie the Company improved potential
earnings leverage in this growing up-cycle.

Outlook

The Company had its share of frustration and diseypment in 2004, but we are encouraged by the mdéume we see developing for 2005
and beyond. U.S. land market activity indicate$ tha industry is entering a different, but impmyipart of the drilling cycle, and as rig
counts continue to move up, we expect dayrateriwiill also ratchet up. The Company’s FlexRig3tamnes to receive high marks in the
field, and as oil field costs escalate, the Compapects to see increasing recognition of its valubde form of higher margins. We are also
encouraged by improvements in the internationaketaand look to this arena to be a leading soufréeng-term growth. Although the
offshore platform market has been a disappointnteatCompany maintains a solid foothold in thisrsegt of the business with the newest
rigs in the Gulf of Mexico fleet and a wealth ofgémeering and project management experience tressisntial for

6




developing future opportunities. While we have moriediate plans or announcements regarding newwigslo have customers expressing
interest in projects in the U.S., as well as irionally. We expect that additional investmentt bé accompanied by term contracts and
dayrates that provide improved financial returnd trat better reflect what we strongly believe ¢oumparalleled drilling efficiencies and

service.

Sincerely,

A

Hans Helmerich
Presiden

December 9, 2004




Financial & Operating Review

Years Ended September 3(C 2004 2003 2002
SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME*t
Operating Revenue 593,32t 507,33: 523,80:
Operating Cost 416,63: 345,53 361,66¢
Depreciatior® 145,94: 82,51 61,445
Operating Incom 30,75¢ 79,28: 100,68
Income from Investmen 27,60: 7,95: 28,07¢
Interest Expens 12,69¢ 12,28¢ 98(C
General and Administrative Exper 37,66: 41,00: 36,56:
Income from Continuing Operatiol 4,35¢ 17,87: 53,70¢
Net Income 4,35¢ 17,87: 63,515
Diluted Earnings Per Common Sha
Income from Continuing Operatio! .0¢ .3E 1.07
Net Income .08 .3 1.2¢
*$000's omitted, except per share d:
® 2004 includes an asset impairment charge of $51
tAIll data excludes discontinued operations exceptncome
SUMMARY FINANCIAL DATA*
Cash** 65,29¢ 38,18¢ 46,88:
Working Capital** 185,98: 110,84t 105,85:
Investment: 161,53. 158,77( 150,17¢
Property, Plant, and Equipment, Ne 998,67 1,058,20! 897,44!
Total Asset: 1,406,84. 1,417,771 1,227,31.
Long-term Debt 200,00( 200,00( 100,00(
Shareholde’ Equity 914,11( 917,25: 895,17(
Capital Expenditure 88,97: 246,30: 312,06
*$000's omitted.
** Excludes discontinued operatior
RIG FLEET SUMMARY
Drilling Rigs —
United States Lan- FlexRigs 48 43 26
United States Lan— Conventiona 39 40 40
United States Offshore Platfor 11 12 12
Internationa 32 32 33
Total Rig Flee 13C 127 111
Rig Utilization Percentag—
United States Lan- FlexRigs 99 97 96
United States Lan— Conventiona 73 67 78
United States Lan- All Rigs 87 81 84
United States Offshore Platfor 48 51 83
Internationa 54 39 51




Years Ended September 30,

2001

2000

1999

1998

1997

1996

1995

1994

SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS
OF INCOME*t
Operating Revenue
Operating Cost
Depreciatior®
Operating Incom
Income from Investmen
Interest Expens
General and Administrative Exper
Income from Continuing Operatiol
Net Income
Diluted Earnings Per Common Sha
Income from Continuing Operatio!
Net Income
*$000's omitted, except per share d:
® 2004 includes an asset impairment charge of
$51,516

TAIll data excludes discontinued operations except n

income.
SUMMARY FINANCIAL DATA*
Cash**
Working Capital**
Investment:
Property, Plant, and Equipment, Ne
Total Asset:
Long-term Debt
Shareholder Equity
Capital Expenditure
*$000's omitted.
** Excludes discontinued operatior
RIG FLEET SUMMARY
Drilling Rigs —
United States Lan- FlexRigs
United States Lan— Conventiona
United States Offshore Platfor
Internationa

Total Rig Flee
Rig Utilization Percentag—
United States Lan- FlexRigs
United States Lan- Conventiona
United States Lan- All Rigs
United States Offshore Platfor
Internationa

531,60: 384,76. 431,74. 479,59. 353,35! 274,20t 229,31t 206,99
330,18: 248,56( 290,04 322,86. 228,95¢ 184,70 158,81 148,21(
49,53: 77,317 70,09 58,187 48,29 39,59, 37,36¢ 31,03
151,89: 58,877 71,601 9854 76,10¢ 49,91¢ 33,137 27,74
10,967 32,060 7,42 4515, 11,746 599: 11,27¢ 6,94

1,701  2,73C  5,38¢ 33€ 34  67¢ 407  38E
28,18(  23,30¢  24,62¢ 21,29¢ 1563t 1522 14,01¢ 14,12¢
80,467  36,47(  32,11f  80,79( 48,80 2584« 18,46: 13,21¢
14425.  82,30(  42,78¢ 101,15: 84,18¢ 72,56¢ 9,751 24,97

1.5¢ 73 65 1.6 97 52 38 27

2.8¢ 1.64 86 20C  1.67  1.4€ 2C 51
128,82¢ 107,63.  21,75¢  24,47¢ 27,96: 16,89: 19,54 29,44
22398( 179,88  82,89:  49,17¢ 6580: 48,12¢ 50,03¢ 76,23¢
20327: 307,42t 240,89: 200,40( 323,51( 229,80¢ 156,90¢ 87,41
650,05. 526,720 553,76¢ 548,55! 392,48¢ 329,37" 286,67¢ 235,06

1,300,12: 1,200,85- 1,073,46! 1,053,201 987,43; 786,35 707,06 624,82
50,00 50,00 50,000 50,00 — — — —

1,026,47 955,70 848,10¢ 793,14( 780,58( 64597( 562,43! 524,33
184,66¢ 6582( 78,357 217,59° 114,62( 83,417 89,70¢ 59,37

13 6 6 6 — — — —
36 32 34 30 29 30 30 36
10 10 10 10 9 11 11 11
37 40 39 44 39 36 35 29
96 88 89 90 77 77 76 76
10¢ 99 79 10C — — — —
96 82 68 94 99 88 73 66
97 85 69 94 99 88 73 66
98 94 95 99 63 70 66 79
56 47 53 88 91 85 84 88




Management’s Discussion & Analysis of
Results of Operations and Financial Condition

RISK FACTORS AND FORWARD - LOOKING STATEMENTS

The following discussion should be read in conjiorctvith the consolidated financial statements gaidted notes included elsewhere herein.
The Company’s future operating results may be &teby various trends and factors, which are beybadCompany’s control. These
include, among other factors, fluctuations in oitlanatural gas prices, expiration or terminatiodrifing contracts, currency exchange gains
and losses, changes in general economic conditiapi&l or unexpected changes in technologies, atksreign operations, uninsured risks,
and uncertain business conditions that affect thm@any’s businesses. Accordingly, past resultstaamtls should not be used by investors to
anticipate future results or trends.

With the exception of historical information, thetters discussed in Management's Discussion & Agislgf Results of Operations and
Financial Condition include forward-looking statamse These forward-looking statements are basedoaus assumptions. The Company
cautions that, while it believes such assumptionsetreasonable and makes them in good faith, asbtants almost always vary from actual
results. The differences between assumed factacndl results can be material. The Company isidicy this cautionary statement to take
advantage of the “safe harbor” provisions of thede Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 famy forward-looking statements made by,
or on behalf of, the Company. The factors iderdifie this cautionary statement and those factarsudised under Risk Factors beginning on
page 6 of the Company’s 2004 Form 10-K are impofators (but not necessarily all important fasjdhat could cause actual results to
differ materially from those expressed in any forvbooking statement made by, or on behalf of, Goenpany.
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SPIN - OFF AND MERGER TRANSACTIONS

On September 30, 2002, Helmerich & Payne, Inc. detrag its distribution of 100 percent of the comnstock of Cimarex Energy Co. to the
Company’s shareholders and the merger of Key Ptadu€ompany, Inc. into a subsidiary of Cimarex mgkkey a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Cimarex. The Cimarex Energy Co. stiskribution was recorded as a dividend and redut a decrease to consolidated
stockholders’ equity of approximately $152.2 mitliothe Company and its subsidiaries continue to amthoperate contract drilling and real
estate businesses, while Cimarex Energy Co. iparate, publicly traded company that owns and apet@n exploration and production
business. The Company does not own any common sfdCknarex Energy Co. (See note 2 of the Constddi&inancial Statements for
complete description of the transaction.) As altesithe transaction, the Company has reportedehalts of its former exploration and
production division (Cimarex Energy Co.) as disamntd operations.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. is a contract drilling caamy which owned and operated a total of 130 dglliigs at September 30, 2004. The
Company’s primary markets are the United Stated tapbusiness in which the Company owned 87 tlgs United States offshore platform
rig business in which the Company owned 11 offsipbeform rigs, and the international land rig Imesis in which the Company owned 32
rigs at year end. Over the past year, crude oilretdral gas prices have risen significantly asstifgply and demand outlook for both
commodities have changed. Crude oil demand hasiegras markets

11




like China and India, as well as the U.S., havemed increases in demand for crude oil due to@oingrowth. The U.S. natural gas mar
has been promising for some time, but only recemilye natural gas production levels and overafiriestotals for natural gas declined to a
point that there is a perceived shortage of dedivker natural gas to meet the prospective total ddnrathe U.S. Because of these dynamics,
the overall demand for drilling rig services hasréased both in the U.S. and internationally. Addally, most offshore rig markets have &
responded positively, with the exception of thesbifre platform rig market. Fundamental changebémtakeup of the offshore platform rig
business have negatively affected offshore platiognutilization dramatically over the past two ygaAs a result, while the Company’s
business in its U.S. land and international sedtopsoved during 2004, the offshore platform rigsiness declined and suffered an operating
loss for the year due to a material asset impaitrmiearge in that segment.

As the Company looks to 2005, it appears that niaiikeboth U.S. land and international segmentsragegood position to record improved
financial results. The U.S. offshore platform besisi does not appear to have good probabilitieisfiorovement, although it should be fairly
stable given the type of projects currently in pla®verall however, Helmerich & Payne, Inc. shcuddefit from the prospective
improvements brought about by historical highsammodity prices, and the excellent financial conditf the Company.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
All per share amounts included in the Results oéf@fions discussion are stated on a diluted bidsisnerich & Payne, Inc.’s net income for
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2004 was $4.4 million ($0.09 per share), comparitd $47.9 million ($0.35 per share) for 2003 an@$6million ($1.26 per share) for 2002.
Included in net income was a pre-tax asset impaitrolearge (discussed in detail later) of $51.5iaml($31.9 million after-tax or $0.63 per
share) in 2004 and income from discontinued openatof $9.8 million ($0.19 per share) in 2002. Winigdd in the Company’s net income, but
not related to its operations, were after-tax g&ios the sale of investment securities of $14.liom($0.28 per share) in 2004, $3.3 million
($0.07 per share) in 2003, and $15.2 million($@80share) in 2002. In addition to income from siégsales, the Company recorded net
income during 2004 of $1.5 million ($0.03 per shdrem non-monetary investment gains. Also includedet income is the Company’s
portion of income or loss from its equity affiliateAtwood Oceanics, Inc. and a 50-50 joint ventuitd Atwood called Atwood Oceanics
West Tuna Pty. Ltd. (dissolved in 2003). From egaifiliates, the Company recorded net income o0$(@er share in 2004, a loss of $0.03
per share in 2003, and net income of $0.06 peesha2002. (See Liquidity section of MD&A for disgsion of the sale of a portion of the
Company’s Atwood Oceanic stock shortly after Seften30, 2004).

Consolidated revenues were $620.9 million in 2@®4,5.3 million in 2003, and $551.9 million in 20Q2.S. land revenues rose steadily from
2002 to 2004, while U.S. offshore platform rig reues declined significantly during the same peridte increase in U.S. land revenues was
fueled by the Company’s increasing rig fleet duthconstruction of FlexRigs over the three-yeaiqul. The average number of U.S. land
rigs available was 86 rigs in 2004, 76 in 2003, &idn 2002. U.S. land rig utilizations for the Coamy were 87 percent in 2004, 81 percent
in 2003, and 84 percent in 2002. Revenue reductiotise
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offshore platform business were mainly due to gdincrig utilization to 48 percent in 2004, from pércent in 2003 and 83 percent in 2002.
Late in 2003, renegotiations for additional work fiwo rigs under the expiring contracts resultetbimer dayrates, thereby contributing to the
decline in revenues. Also late in 2003, two otligs were moved to an active standby status whish lalered revenues, even though those
rigs remained active. International rig revenuedided from 2002 to 2003, and rose during 2004@siilizations fell from 51 percent in
2002, to 39 percent in 2003, and then rose to Bdepéin 2004.

Revenues from investments were $27.6 million inf2CEB.0 million in 2003, and $28.1 million in 200@cluded in revenues was the
aggregate of pre-tax gains, losses, and write-doelating to the Company’s portfolio of equity saties which were $25.4 million in 2004,
$5.5 million in 2003, and $24.8 million in 2002térest and dividend income fell in each year duetluced cash positions, lower interest
rates, and a reduction in the Company’s equityfplast Total interest and dividend income was $2lion in 2004, $2.5 million in 2003,
and $3.6 million in 2002.

Direct operating costs in 2004 were $416.6 millawrY0 percent of operating revenues, compared $@45.5 million or 68 percent of
operating revenues in 2003, and $361.7 million®pércent of operating revenues in 2002. The 28p8rese to revenue percentage would
basically be the same as 2002 and only slightly tiean 2004 except for the fact that in the offstgatform segment in 2003 one contract
higher than normal margins and significant eantynieation revenues.
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Depreciation expense was $94.4 million in 2004,.%88illion in 2003, and $61.4 million in 2002. Depration expense increased
significantly over the three-year period as the @any placed into service 13 new rigs in 2002, 18 nigs in 2003, and 5 new rigs in 2004.
The Company anticipates 2005 depreciation expenbe tonsistent with 2004, unless capital expereituse unexpectedly. Additional
depreciation as a result of the 5 new land riggrpservice during 2004 and capital expenditurdklvei offset by the reduction in offshore
platform rig depreciation as a result of the agspirment charge discussed below.

During the fourth quarter of 2004, the Company geiped a pre-tax, non-cash asset impairment ctadr§®1.5 million related to its Gulf of
Mexico offshore platform rigs. During fiscal 20Gerage revenue per day for the Compamyjfshore platform rigs steadily declined frorr
average of $32,790 per day during the first quacé&?28,380 during the fourth quarter. Average aashgins per rig day declined throughout
the year from $15,206 during the first quarter @92 to $11,003 during the fourth quarter. Totalrafing profit for the offshore platform rig
segment had averaged over $9 million per quartendth fiscal years 2002 and 2003, with an $8.%ioniloperating profit recorded for the
fourth quarter of 2003. During fiscal 2004, opergtprofit was $4.4 million, $4.1 million, $3.8 mdh, and $4.3 million (excluding the asset
impairment charge) for the four sequential fisazuters as shown below.

Quarters Ended 12/31/2002 3/31/2004 6/30/2004 9/30/2004
(in thousands)
Operating profit, as reporte $4,37¢ $4,10¢ $3,82¢ $(47,18()
Asset impairment char — — — 51,51¢
Operating profit, excluding asset impairment chz $4,37¢ $4,10¢ $3,82¢ $ 4,33¢
I I I I
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During this same three year period, industry phatfoig utilization in the Company’s market declinfedm 72% during the first quarter of
fiscal 2002, to 47% during the fourth quarter stél 2004. During this same period, utilizationttee Company’s platform rigs fell from
100% (10 of 10) during the first quarter 2002, fowa of 42% (five of 12) during the first and sedoquarters of 2004. Although activity rose
slightly during the third and fourth quarters o020it is expected to drop back to five active wdgsing the first quarter of 2005.

As demonstrated by these financial trends, the @aiylp offshore platform business has continuecetdide. During the first half of 2004,
the Company believed that two new contracts obtedioework that commenced during the third and fouguarters and the increases in
commodity prices were precursors to more biddirtiyi#g in the market. That anticipated increasdid activity did not materialize and
bidding opportunities were very low during the thand fourth quarters. Additionally, oil and natugas commodity prices reached new
historical highs during the Company’s fourth fisqahrter, but there was no improvement in the ntddtehe Company’s offshore platform
rigs and no indication from customers that new oppities would be forthcoming in the foreseeabiiife.

As a result of these events and circumstances, geament performed an analysis of the general ingdusérket conditions in the offshore
platform rig business, and the prospective marketahd for the offshore platform rigs owned by tleenpany. Based upon this analysis,
management determined that the carrying value rtdiceof the offshore rigs exceeded the estimatetiscounted future cash flows
associated with these assets. Accordingly, an aspeirment charge
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was recorded to reduce the carrying value of teetado their estimated fair value. Because quuigdket prices are not available for offsh
platform rigs, the fair value was determined basgeoh estimated discounted future cash flows andtiiigation. The cash flows were
estimated by management considering factors suphogpective market demand, recent changes ieclgiblogy and its effect on each rig's
marketability, any cash investment required to nthkerig marketable, suitability of rig size andkeap to existing platforms, and new
competitive dynamics due to lower industry utilinat

The timing of the impairment was predicated on mber of industry and rig-specific factors thatthie opinion of management, appear to be
longer term in nature than originally expected.uratcash flow limitations for existing rigs becamere apparent as long term arrangements
for a few of the Company’s newer rigs were adjustedng the year. Also, one of the Compangiore marketable rigs was stacked during
fourth quarter, with no prospects for work in tieeefseeable future. It was determined that oneeoCthmpany’s older rigs was no longer
marketable and, therefore, was written down tsaisage value and removed from the active rig casrdf September 30, 2004.

The Company also assessed its international lanfteet because of relatively low rig utilizatiodsring fiscal years 2002, 2003 and 2004.
During that three year period, the Company averdgethg 32 rigs available with average annual ima@onal fleet utilizations of 51% in
2002, 39% in 2003, and 54% in 2004. Because onhgtland rig demand in the U.S., five internationgs$ were returned to the U.S. during
the first quarter of fiscal 2005. Activity in theternational market also improved and the Compaagfive rig count in South
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America increased during the first quarter. Dur@gtober 2004, the Company had 27 international tayglavailable for service, with 23 rigs
(85%) that were either active or had been commiitig signed letters of intent. Market conditios international work have improved
substantially over the past six months. Based upanagement’s analysis, the undiscounted estimatatkfcash flows exceeded the carrying
value of our international land rigs.

General and administrative expenses totaled $3illidmfor 2004, $41 million for 2003, and $36.6 lfin for 2002. The decrease in total
general and administrative expenses from 2003 @d 2¢as primarily from a reduction in pension exmedse to a decrease in the benefit
accrual, reduced field training expense as theHitpkraining program was completed, and lower yadard bonus expense. These reductions
were partially offset by increases in property,uedy and health insurance expenses. The increaseZ002 to 2003 was primarily the result
of increases in employee benefits relating to panshedical insurance, and 401(k) matching experigaployee salaries and bonuses also
contributed to the increase, as well as increaspsoperty and casualty insurance costs.

Interest expense was $12.7 million in 2004 and®tdllion in 2003, compared with $1.0 million in @2. The Company issued $200 million
of intermediate-term debt, half of which was plagest prior to the end of fiscal year 2002, anddtteer half placed at the beginning of fiscal
year 2003. Additionally, the Company drew on italbéine of credit during 2003, with $30 million dva at the end of 2003. The $30 milli
was paid early in fiscal 2004, with no bank loatstanding at the end of 2004.
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The provision for income taxes totaled $4.4 milliore004, $14.6 million in 2003, and $40.6 million2002. Effective income tax rates on
income from continuing operations were 55 percer004, 43 percent in 2003, and 44 percent in 2Bfi2ctive income tax rates are higher
for the Company’s international operations thanit®tJ.S. operations. As a result, the aggregdez®fe rate is higher in years when
international operations make up a higher percentddinancial operating profit. International openg profit, as a percent of total Company
operating profit, was 68 percent in 2004, eightpat in 2003, and 15 percent in 2002. (See Notetleorinancial Statements).

COMPARISON OF THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2004 AND 2003 2004 2003 % Change

(in thousands, except operating statistics)

U.S. LAND OPERATIONS

Revenue! $347,79: $273,99: 26.9%

Direct operating expens: 246,17 201,39¢ 22.2

General and administrative expel 7,76t 9,30¢ (16.5)

Depreciatior 56,52¢ 44,72¢ 26.4

Operating profi $ 37,32! $ 18,56 101.(
L] I

Operating Statistics

Activity days 27,47 22,58¢ 21.€%
Average rig revenue per d. $ 11,70( $ 11,43¢ 2
Average rig expense per d $ 8,001 $ 8,221 2.7
Average rig margin per de $ 3,69¢ $ 3,21t 15.1
Number of owned rigs at end of peri 87 83 4.8
Rig utilization 87% 81% 7.4

Operating statistics for per day revenue, expemskraargin do not include reimbursements of “oupotket” expenses.
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The Company’s U.S. land rig operating profit in@eé 101.0 percent from 2003 to 2004. This increasedue to improved rig utilization
experienced by the Company, the increased numbéyévailable during 2004, and the improvemeraharage rig margins per rig day
during the year. The improved margins were a redfdtightly increased average dayrates and lowpemses per rig day experienced during
2004. The lower expense per day in 2004 was dtleetelimination of excess crew overages that oecunm 2003 in connection with placing
19 new rigs into service. During the fourth quad&2004, the Company began to experience a mgrafisant improvement in revenue and
margin per day due to higher levels of U.S. lagdagtivity. Although it is difficult to predict thextent of continued improvement, it is
anticipated that rig activity will continue to ingare as long as crude oil and natural gas priceaireat the historically high levels
experienced during the second half of 2004. Tatahlper of rigs owned at the end of 2004 as compa@603 increased by a net of four ri
resulting from five additional FlexRigs being comgd during the year and removing from serviceader conventional rig. As a result of
the new rigs put in service, and a full year ofréefation of rigs put in service during 2003, tdteS. land rig depreciation increased

26.4 percent from 2003 to 2004. It is anticipatest depreciation will increase during 2005, bua atuch lower rate than in 2004.
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COMPARISON OF THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2004 AND 2003 2004 2003 % Change

(in thousands, except operating statistics

U.S. OFFSHORE OPERATIONS

Revenue: $ 84,99! $112,63: (24.5%

Direct operating expens 52,98 60,58¢ (12.5

General and administrative expel 3,25¢ 2,93¢ 10.¢

Depreciatior 12,101 12,79¢ (5.9

Asset impairment char 51,51¢ — —

Operating profit (loss) $(34,877) $ 36,30¢ (196.7)
| |

Operating Statistics

Activity days 2,08¢ 2,23¢ (6.5%
Average rig revenue per d. $ 29,43: $ 38,23¢ (23.0)
Average rig expense per d $ 16,50¢ $ 17,82 (7.4)
Average rig margin per de $12,92: $ 20,41% (36.7)
Number of owned rigs at end of peri 11 12 (8.3
Rig utilization 48% 51% (5.9

Operating statistics for per day revenue, expemskraargin do not include reimbursements of “oupotket” expenses and exclude the
effects of offshore platform management contracts.

Operating profit in the Company’s U.S. offshoretfaem rig operations fell from $36.3 million durir2P03 to a loss of $34.9 million in 2004
due primarily to the asset impairment charge of $5dillion. Excluding the asset impairment chamygerating profit would have been
$16.6 million for 2004, which is a $19.7 millioname from 2003.

2004 2003

(in millions)
Operating profit (loss), as report $(34.9) $36.2
Asset impairment charg 51.t —
Operating profit, excluding asset impairment che $ 16.€ $36.2
[ ] [ |

*Note: This table is a reconciliation of operatingpfit (loss) for the offshore platform segmentfiscal 2004 and 2003, which is provided
assist with yearly comparisor
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Financial performance during 2004 was hindereddntinued softness in the offshore platform rig neakhich kept rig utilizations at an
average of 48 percent for 2004. More importantjaltrevenues and revenue per day declined duestoges in the nature of contract terms
on several of the Company’s rigs. During 2003, sts for two of the Company’s newest rigs termédadnd were renegotiated at lower
dayrates just prior to the end of the year. Add#idy, two other rigs that were working at full dates during 2003 were changed to standby
status, thereby reducing total revenues and pbiifita These specific transactions, coupled withazerall softening in the market, caused
average rig revenue and margin per rig day to deduring 2004.

COMPARISON OF THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2004 AND 2003 2004 2003 % Change

(in thousands, except operating statistics

INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS

Revenue: $150,69¢ $109,81: 37.2%

Direct operating expens: 113,98t 81,46. 39.¢

General and administrative expel 2,14¢ 3,11( (31.)

Depreciatior 20,53( 20,09: 2.2

Operating profi $ 14,03¢ $ 5,14¢ 172.¢
| |

Operating Statistics

Activity days 6,26¢ 4,51¢ 38.8%
Average rig revenue per d. $ 19,88¢ $ 19,601 1.4
Average rig expense per d $ 14,27¢ $ 14,14( 1.C
Average rig margin per de $ 5,60¢ $ 5,468 2.€
Number of owned rigs at end of peri 32 32 —
Rig utilization 54% 3% 38.t

Operating statistics of per day revenue, expensenaargin do not include reimbursements of “out-otket” expenses and exclude the
effects of management contracts and currency ratialu expense.

Included in international operations revenue andgiaper day calculations for fiscal 2004 is anumance gain of $1.7 million. Without tl
insurance gain, the revenue per day and margindagrwould have been $19,616 and $5,338, respegtivel
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Operating profit for the Company’s internationakogtions increased 172.6 percent from 2003 to 20@4to higher rig activity, improved
margin per rig day, and lower general and admigiiste expense resulting from reduced salary, bandstravel expense. Rig activity
improved, primarily due to improved demand in tr@@any’s largest international operation in Venézuéenezuelan operations improved
substantially as the government-owned oil comp®&B)VSA, increased their spending in an attempt forove overall production rates
following the reduction in production caused by arkers’ strike and attempted coup in Venezuelardu?i003. Despite overall improvement
of conditions in Venezuela, the currency there deagslued during the year, resulting in a loss 0®$iillion for 2004. (See MD&A Section
on Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk for moreudision.) Additionally, Company operations improgedbstantially in Bolivia and
Hungary. Although operations in Chad ceased ag¢titeof 2004, and it is anticipated that Hungaryerations will cease during the first half
of 2005, the Company expects that operations mifirove in the Company’s operations located in Varkz, Colombia and Ecuador during
2005. Late in 2004 and during the first quarte2@®5, the Company returned to the United Statesdhits 32 international land rigs. Two of
the five rigs have contracts for work as of thstfgiuarter of 2005. Three of the five rigs wereesithied to arrive during the first quarter 2005
in the U.S. for an assessment of their viabilityhia U.S. market. As a result of the improved dedrfan contract drilling work in South
America, and the reduction in available Compang,rigis anticipated that rig utilizations will impve during 2005.
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COMPARISON OF THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2004 AND 2003 2004 2003 % Change

(in thousands)

REAL ESTATE

Revenue: $9,84: $10,89: (9.6%
Direct operating expens 3,341 1,78¢ 87.1
Depreciatior 2,25¢ 2,53t (11.7)
Operating profi $4,24: $ 6,56¢ (35.9)

Operating profit in the Company’s Real Estate divisfell 35.4 percent from 2003 to 2004, but perfance of its core operations actually
improved. The reduction in operating profit was guenarily to a decline in the profits recorded fbe sale of raw land in 2004 versus 2003.
While the sale of raw land has not been an ongoimyponent of income in the Real Estate divisioa,Glompany recorded gains on sales of
land totaling $1.0 million and $2.7 million in 20@d 2003, respectively. Direct operating expeime@eased as compared to 2003 due to

demolition costs in 2004 of over $.8 million refggito the razing of the Company’s former headqusitteilding, and an increase in
advertising expense.
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COMPARISON OF THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003 AND 2002 2003 2002 % Change

(in thousands, except operating statistics

U.S. LAND OPERATIONS

Revenue: $273,99: $232,44¢ 17.%
Intersegment eliminatio — (809) —
Direct operating expens 201,39¢ 165,39« 21.¢
Intersegment eliminatio — (64¢) —
General and administrative expel 9,30¢ 10,081 (7.9
Depreciatior 44,72¢ 26,31 70.C
Operating profit $ 18,56¢ $ 30,49: (39.))
| |

Operating Statistics

Activity days 22,58¢ 17,47¢ 29.2%
Average rig revenue per d. $ 11,43¢ $ 12,39; (7.9
Average rig expense per d $ 8,221 $ 8,561 4.0
Average rig margin per de $ 3,21¢ $ 3,83¢€ (16.2)
Number of owned rigs at end of peri 83 66 25.¢
Rig utilization 81% 84% (3.6

Operating statistics for per day revenue, expemskraargin do not include reimbursements of “oupotket” expenses.

The Company’s operating profit in its U.S. land ejgerations fell by 39.1 percent from 2002 to 2afE5pite the fact that commodity prices
were very strong during 2003. Historically highaewoil and natural gas prices, and an increasiagsitny rig count in the United States were
all strong signals for an up cycle that could bareéf service and contract drilling companies. Hoxgr, in spite of increasing rig activity,
average dayrates and margins per rig day fell d2003. Even with higher industry rig counts, tdeliional capacity added by companies
like Helmerich & Payne, along with intense rig-ag-price competition, delayed improvements in désgand margins. More particularly
with Helmerich & Payne, 2002 dayrates were aidethibyremaining term left on some of the contrastsifork relating to FlexRig2s that
were completed and commenced work during 2001. & helatively high dayrates and
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margins did not continue at those levels during2@fder contracts expired. The Company’s increaseayicapacity was brought about by its
FlexRig3 construction program that began during2@uring 2003, 19 FlexRig3s were completed andmguotservice. Two first generation
FlexRigs were sent overseas for work in Hungary@hdd. As a result of the construction program Gbenpany’s investment in drilling
equipment rose significantly, thereby resultingmincrease in depreciation expense.

COMPARISON OF THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003 AND 2002 2003 2002 % Change

(in thousands, except operating statistics

U.S. OFFSHORE OPERATIONS

Revenue: $112,63: $132,24¢ (14.9%

Direct operating expens: 60,58¢ 79,30: (23.6)

General and administrative expel 2,93¢ 3,451 (14.9)

Depreciatior 12,79¢ 10,80¢ 18.4

Operating profi $ 36,30¢ $ 38,68¢ 6.2
I L]

Operating Statistics

Activity days 2,23 3,28¢ (32.0%
Average rig revenue per d. $ 38,23¢ $ 30,42« 25.7
Average rig expense per d $ 17,82: $ 16,26: 9.€
Average rig margin per de $ 20,417 $ 14,16: 44.2
Number of owned rigs at end of peri 12 12 -
Rig utilization 51% 83% (38.6)

Operating statistics of per day revenue, expenskenaargin do not include reimbursements of “out-otket” expenses and exclude the
effects of offshore platform management contracts.

During 2003, the Company experienced a reducti@ttivity days and rig utilization in its U.S. dfiisre platform rig operations. Total
revenues and revenue per day during 2003 were aigléte recognition of revenue due to early terrigmaof contracts and higher dayrates
for three rigs. During the fourth quarter of 2008¢ platform rig was stacked and two rigs that weweking at full dayrate were changed to
standby status. Capital expenditures were reduedatically due to the fact that there were no p&atform rigs under
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construction during 2003, whereas two new platfaga were completed during 2002.

COMPARISON OF THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003 AND 2002 2003 2002 % Change

(in thousands, except operating statistics)

INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS

Revenue: $109,81: $151,39: (27.5%

Direct operating expens 81,46 115,29 (29.9)

General and administrative expel 3,11C 2,63¢ 18.1

Depreciatior 20,09: 20,33¢ (1.2

Operating profit $ 5,14¢ $ 13,12¢ (60.€)
| |

Operating Statistics

Activity days 4,51F 5,95¢ (24.2)%
Average rig revenue per d. $ 19,60z $ 21,16: (7.4)
Average rig expense per d $ 14,14 $ 14,59¢ (3.0
Average rig margin per de $ 5,467 $ 6,562 (16.7)
Number of owned rigs at end of peri 32 33 (3.0
Rig utilization 39% 51% (23.5)

Operating statistics of per day revenue, expensenaargin do not include reimbursements of “out-otket” expenses, the effects of
management contracts, or the effect of currencglation expense.

Rig activity, revenues and operating profit in @empany’s international operations declined frofi2@ 2003. The general softness in the
international markets was broad based and resultiedver utilizations in each of the countries ihieh the Company operated during the
2002-2003 period. The Company’s Venezuelan opersti@here the largest number of international aigslocated, were also hampered by
an attempted coup, which resulted in a strike bykexs at PDVSA, the government-owned oil comparhe Tompany has currency risks in
Venezuela described in detail later in the MD&A anéforeign Currency Exchange Rate Risk. Due togkpbsure, the Company recorded
currency devaluation losses for Venezuelan operstiotaling $.6 million in 2003 and $4.4 million2002.
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During 2002, the Company recorded an estimatedidatian loss totaling $1.2 million in Argentina whéhat country experienced a drami
economic collapse. As a result of the collapsegtiheernment stopped the outflow of dollars from ¢bentry and required that former dollar
obligations be paid in Argentina pesos. During 2088 Company was able to reduce its 2002 estindgedluation loss by approximately
$1.0 million by securing agreements with its custegithat limited the portion of the accounts reable that was paid in pesos with the
balance of such accounts receivable paid in U.lardo

COMPARISON OF THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003 AND 2002 2003 2002 % Change
(in thousands)

REAL ESTATE

Revenue! $10,89: $8,52¢ 27.&%

Direct operating expens: 1,78¢ 1,617 10.€

Depreciatior 2,53¢ 1,84¢ 37.t

Operating profi $ 6,56¢ $5,06¢ 29.7

Operating profit increased by 29.7 percent from2@02003 in the Company’s Real Estate divisiommgprily due to the sale of
approximately 15 acres of raw land from the Comfm®puth Park investment. Pre-tax profit from thkeof land was approximately

$2.7 million. Depreciation expense increased inX@0e to the acceleration of depreciation on then@my’s headquarters building, which
was demolished in 2004. Overall combined occupamgyresulting revenues generated from all the otha@restate properties did not
materially fluctuate from 2002 to 2003.

28




LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company’s capital spending for continuing opers was $89 million in 2004, $246.3 million in®) and $312.1 million in 2002. Net
cash provided from operating activities for thoame time periods was $135.4 million in 2004, $96iltion in 2003, and $151.8 million in
2002. In addition to the net cash provided by ojiegaactivities, the Company also generated netgeds from the sale of portfolio securities
of $30.9 million in 2004, $18.2 million in 2003,&#47.1 million in 2002. The Company’s 2005 capsianding estimate is $55 million,
down from $89 million in 2004 due to the completimfithe FlexRig construction in March, 2004.

During 2000, the Company announced its FlexRig@mm under which it would construct 12 new FlexRigan approximate cost of
between $7.5 and $8.25 million each. During 206&,Gompany completed construction on seven of thasés. Additionally, the Compai
announced in 2001 that it would embark on anotbaesttuction project (FlexRig3 program) to buildadditional 25 FlexRigs at an
approximate cost of $11.0 million each. During 202 Company completed the remaining five rigghaFlexRig2 program and the first
eight rigs in the FlexRig3 program. During 2003 temaining 17 rigs originally planned in the Fleg&program were completed. Another
seven FlexRig3s were scheduled for constructioa,dafwvhich were completed by the end of fiscal 20081 five were completed by March,
2004.

In August 2002, the Company entered into a $200anilntermediate-term unsecured debt obligatiothwtaged maturities from 5 to
12 years and a weighted average interest rate3affircent.
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Funding of the notes occurred on August 15, 20@R@ctober 15, 2002 in equal amounts of $100 milliime terms of the debt obligations
require the Company to maintain a minimum ratiaelt to total capitalization. Proceeds from therimediate-term debt were used to repay
the balance of the Company’s outstanding debt 6frillion in September 2002, to help fund the Compsa rig construction program and
other general corporate purposes.

On September 30, 2004, the Company had a commuitteeicured line of credit totaling $50 million, witb money drawn and letters of cre
totaling $13 million outstanding against the lifide line of credit matures in 2005 and bears isteseLIBOR plus .875 percent to

1.125 percent depending on certain financial ratfdabe Company. The Company must maintain ceftaancial ratios including debt to tot
capitalization and debt to earnings before intetages, depreciation, and amortization, and miairgtaninimum level of tangible net worth.

Current ratios for September 30, 2004, and 2002 wet and 2.3, respectively. The debt to totalteipation ratio was 18 percent and

20 percent at September 30, 2004 and 2003, regplgcthdditionally, the Company manages a largefpbo of marketable securities that, at
the close of 2004, had a market value of $240.%anilThe Company’s investments in Atwood Oceanligs,, and Schlumberger, Ltd., made
up almost 94 percent of the portfolio’s market eatun September 30, 2004. The value of the portfslgubject to fluctuation in the market
and may vary considerably over time. Excluding@mmpany’s equity-method investments, the portfidicecorded at fair value on the
Company’s balance sheet for each reporting pehioduly 2004, Atwood Oceanics, Inc., (Atwood) then@pany’s equity affiliate, filed a
Registration Statement covering all 3,000,000 shafétwood stock owned by H&P.
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On October 19, 2004, Atwood and Helmerich & Paylnsad a public offering in which Helmerich & Paysad 1,000,000 Atwood shares
and received approximately $45.8 million. The Compaow owns 2,000,000 shares or approximately p8r8ent of the outstanding shares
of Atwood.

During 2004, the Company paid a dividend of $.3@@6share, or a total of $16.2 million, represamtime 32nd consecutive year of dividend
increases.

STOCK PORTFOLIO HELD BY THE COMPANY

September 30, 200- Number of Shares Cost Basis Market Value
(in thousands, except share amounts)
Atwood Oceanics, Inc 3,000,001 $57,82¢ $142,62(
Schlumberger, Ltc 1,230,00! 19,53¢ 82,79:
Other 8,27 15,29¢
Total $85,63¢ $240,70¢
I |

MATERIAL COMMITMENTS

The Company has no off balance sheet arrangemidr@asCompany’s contractual obligations as of Sepwrb, 2004, are summarized in the
table below:

Payments Due By Year Total 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 After 2009

(in thousands)
Long-term debt (a $200,00( $ — $ — $25,00( $ — $25,00( $150,00(
Operating leases (| 9,92¢ 2,54z 2,261 1,84« 1,41z 1,40¢ 462
Total Contractual Obligatior $209,92¢ $2,54: $2,261 $26,84« $1,412 $26,40¢ $150,46:

(a) See Note 4 “Long-term Debt” to the Company’'s:€aidated Financial Statements.
(b) See Note 14 “Commitments and ContingencieshéoCompany’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

The above table does not include obligations ferGompany’s pension plan, for which the recordehlility at September 30, 2004 is
$19.2 million. Based on current information avadafsom plan actuaries, the Company anticipatesardributions will be made in 2005.
Future contributions beyond 2005 are difficult stimate due to multiple variables involved.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company’s consolidated financial statementsmapacted by the accounting policies used and stimates and assumptions made by
management during their preparation. The followg discussion of the critical accounting polici@hich relate to property, plant and
equipment, impairment of long-lived assets, sadfiilance accruals, and revenue recognition. Otgaifisiant accounting policies are
summarized in Note 1 in the notes to the consdadifihancial statements.

Property, plant and equipment, including renewats lzetterments, are stated at cost, while maintenand repairs are expensed as incurred.
Interest costs applicable to the construction @lifiting assets are capitalized as a componertetost of such assets. The Company
provides for the depreciation of property, pland @quipment using the straiglite method over the estimated useful lives ofabsets. Upo
retirement or other disposal of fixed assets, tis and related accumulated depreciation are rednivee the respective accounts and any
gains or losses are recorded in results of operstio

The Company’s management assesses the potentilimgnt of its long-lived assets whenever evenghanges in conditions indicate that
the carrying value of an asset may not be recoler@iihanges that trigger such an assessment magéequipment obsolescence, changes
in the market demand for a specific asset, pemddslatively low rig utilizations, declining revae per rig day, declining cash margin per rig
day, completion of specific contracts, and/or ollefsanges in general market conditions. If a revad the long-lived assets indicates that the
carrying value of certain of these assets is more
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than the estimated undiscounted future cash flawsmpairment charge is made to adjust the caryatbge to the estimated fair market value
of the asset. See additional discussion of impaitrassumptions, including determination of fairmelunder Results of Operations. Use of
different assumptions could result in an impairmararge different from that reported.

The Company is self-insured or maintains high debigs for certain losses relating to worker’s camgation, general, product, and auto
liabilities. Generally, deductibles are $2 millipar occurrence on claims that fall under these remes. Insurance is also purchased on rig
properties and generally deductibles are $1 millienoccurrence. Excess insurance is purchasedfmese coverages to limit the Company’s
exposure to catastrophic claims, but there carotesaurance that such coverage will respond odéguate in all circumstances. Retained
losses are estimated and accrued based upon onatest of the aggregate liability for claims in@dr and using the Company’s historical
loss experience and estimation methods that arevieell to be reliable. Nonetheless, insurance egsriaclude certain assumptions and
management judgments regarding the frequency amdigeof claims, claim development, and settlenymaictices. Unanticipated changes in
these factors may produce materially different am®of expense that would be reported under thesgams.

The Company’s pension benefit costs and obligatawaddependent on various actuarial assumptioressCbBmpany makes assumptions
relating to discount rates, rate of compensaticrei@se, and expected return on plan assets. Thepdgnbases its discount rate
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assumption on current yields on AA-rated corpolaitg-term bonds. The rate of compensation incraasamption reflects actual experience
and future outlook. The expected return on plaetads determined based on historical portfoliaitssand future expectations of rates of
return. Actual results that differ from estimateg@amptions are accumulated and amortized overstitaaged future working life of the plan
participants and could therefore affect expensegeized and obligations recorded in future periods.

Revenues and costs on daywork contracts are remmydaily as the work progresses. For certain aotsf we receive lump-sum payments
for the mobilization of rigs and other drilling égment. Revenues earned, net of direct costs iaduar the mobilization, are deferred and
recognized over the term of the related drillingtcact. Other lump-sum payments received from custs relating to specific contracts are
deferred and amortized to income as services aferpeed. Costs incurred to relocate rigs and oth#ling equipment to areas in which a
contract has not been secured are expensed assiicur

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate RThe Company has international operations in Hungad/in several South American countries, as well
as a labor contract for work in Equatorial Guinad Russia. With the exception of Venezuela, the amg’s exposure to currency valuation
losses is usually minimal due to the fact thatualty all invoice billings and receipts in otherurdries are in U.S. dollars. Even though the
Company’s contract with its customers in Argentives in U.S. dollars, the Company recorded a detialudoss as Argentina experienced a
dramatic economic collapse during 2002.
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As a result of the economic collapse, the goverrrspped the outflow of dollars from the countndaequired that former dollar
obligations be paid in Argentina pesos, resultmghe Company recording an estimated loss of $1llbmin 2002. The Company was able
to reduce this estimated loss by approximately $iillon during 2003 by securing agreements wighdtistomers that limited the portion of
the accounts receivable that was paid in pesosthéttbalance of such accounts receivable paid$ tbllars. At the present time, the
Company has one rig working in Argentina.

The Company is exposed to risks of currency devialnan Venezuela primarily as a result of bolivaceivable balances and bolivar cash
balances. In Venezuela, approximately 60% of thea@my'’s invoice billings to the Venezuelan statecompany, PDVSA, are in U.S.
dollars and 40% are in the local currency, thevanliPDVSA typically pays all amounts owed in balis. The Company, historically, has
usually been able to convert the bolivars receiagzhyment of the dollar-based billings into dadlam a timely manner and thus avoid, in
large measure, devaluation losses pertaining settellar-based invoices. In compliance with agfilie regulations the Company on
October 1, 2003, submitted a request to the Ver@agmvernment seeking permission to convert exgdiolivar balances into U.S. dollars.
In January 2004, the Venezuelan government apprilvedonversion of bolivar cash balances to U.8axoand the remittance of

$8.8 million U.S. dollars as dividends by the Compga Venezuelan subsidiary to the U.S. based pafen& consequence, the Company’s
exposure to currency devaluation was reduced Isyatmiount.
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As stated above, the Company is exposed to riskaroéncy devaluation in Venezuela primarily assuit of bolivar receivable balances and
bolivar cash balances. As a result of the 20% deaimin of the bolivar during fiscal 2004 (from Sember 2003 through August 2004), the
Company experienced total devaluation losses & @illlion during that same period. This 20% dev#hraloss may not be reflective of the
actual potential for future devaluation losses bseaf the exchange controls that are currentpldne. There have been recent press reports
of a potential devaluation in calendar 2005. Howgtree exact amount and timing of such devaluasamcertain. While the Company is
unable to predict future devaluation in Venezuigliscal 2005 activity levels are similar to fidc2004 and if a 10% to 20% devaluation were
to occur, the Company could experience potentiakeaey devaluation losses ranging from approxinya®dl2 million to $2.3 million.

In late August 2003, the Venezuelan state petroleompany agreed, on a prospective basis, to paytep of the Company’s dollar-based
invoices in U.S. dollars. While this is a positivevelopment in light of the existing exchange oalstrthere is no guarantee as to how long
this arrangement will continue. Were this agreenemind, the Company would revert back to receiyiagments in bolivars and thus
increase bolivar cash balances and exposure tdudeicm.

Commodity Price Riskhe demand for contract drilling services is a ltesiuexploration and production companies spenditamey to

explore and develop drilling prospects in searctcfade oil and natural gas. Their appetite folhssfpending is driven by their cash flow and
financial strength, which is very dependent, amotigr things, on crude oil and natural gas commyqatices. Crude oil prices are determi
by a number of factors including supply and demand,
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worldwide economic conditions, and geopoliticaltéas. Crude oil and natural gas prices have beéatiloand very difficult to predict. This
difficulty has led many exploration and productmympanies to base their capital spending on muaie gunservative estimates of
commodity prices. As a result, demand for contdaiting services is not always purely a functidittee movement of commaodity prices.

Interest Rate RisThe Company’s interest rate risk exposure resuitsgrily from short-term rates, mainly LIBOR-basal borrowings from
its commercial banks. The Company currently mamnstaill of its debt portfolio in fixed-rate debt. thme past, the Company has entered into
financial instruments such as interest rate swapgsway consider this and other financial instrureémthe future to manage the portfolio r

between fixed and floating rate debt and to migghe impact of changes in interest rates basedamragemens assessment of future intel

rates, volatility of the yield curve and the Comyarability to access the capital markets in a timeanner.

Due to the fact that all of the Company’s debtesryend has fixed rate interest obligations, ther® current risk due to interest rate
fluctuation.

The following tables provide information as of Sapber 30, 2004 and 2003 about the Company’s iriteatsrisk sensitive instruments:

INTEREST RATE RISK (in thousands)

After Fair Value

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2009 Total @ 9/30/04

Fixed Rate Dek - - $25,00( — $25,00C $150,00( $200,00( $216,40(
Average Interest Ra - - 5.5% - 5.% 6.5% 6.2%
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INTEREST RATE RISK (in thousands)

After Fair Value
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2008 Total @ 9/30/03
Fixed Rate Dek $ - $ - % - $25,000 ¢ - $175,00C  $200,00C $226,50(
Average Interest Ra - - - 5.5% - 6.4% 6.3%
Variable Rate Dek $30,00¢ $ - % - 3 - $ - 3 - $ 30,00 $ 30,00(
Average Interest Rate ( - - - - - - (a)

(a) LIBOR plus an increment of .875 to 1.125% dep@non certain financial ratios.

Equity Price RiskOn September 30, 2004, the Company owned stoakthar publicly held companies with a total markaiue of

$240.7 million. The Company'’s investments in Atwdddeanics, Inc., and Schlumberger, Ltd., made mpst 94 percent of the portfolio’s
market value at September 30, 2004. Although thaamy sold a portion of its position in Schlumbe2004 and Atwood in the first quarter
of 2005, the Company has no specific plans tosgklitional securities, but may sell additional siéims based on market conditions and other
circumstances. These securities are subject tae variety and number of market-related risks tioald substantially reduce or increase the
market value of the Company'’s holdings. Exceptlier Company’s holdings in its equity affiliate, Ated Oceanics, Inc., the portfolio is
recorded at fair value on its balance sheet witinges in unrealized after-tax value reflected éebuity section of its balance sheet. Any
reduction in market value would have an impactren@ompany’s debt ratio and financial strength. ftih@ market value of the portfolio of
securities was $169.5 million at September 30, 2003
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Report of Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Helmerich & Payne, Inc. as of Septe®®e2004 and 2003, and the
related consolidated statements of income, shatdetslequity, and cash flows for each of the thyrears in the period ended September 30,
2004. These financial statements are the respditsitfi the Company’s management. Our responsibiitto express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet émdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdinthecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disads in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptesiused and significant estimates made by marageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thataodits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the financial statements referedlbove present fairly, in all material respedts, ¢consolidated financial position of
Helmerich & Payne, Inc. at September 30, 2004 &@B2and the consolidated results of its operatéonsits cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended September 30, 2004 nfommity with U.S. generally accepted accountinggiples.

ERNST & YOUMNC LLP

Tulsa, Oklahoma
November 23, 200
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Consolidated Statements of Income

Years Ended September 3(

2004

2003

2002

REVENUES
Operating revenue
Income from investmen

COSTS AND EXPENSES
Direct operating cosi
Depreciatior
Asset impairment charg
General and administrati\
Interest

Income from continuing operations before incomesaand equity in income (loss)

affiliates
Provision for income taxe
Equity in income (loss) of affiliates net of incorrexes

Income from continuing operatiol
Income from discontinued operatia

NET INCOME

Basic earnings per common shg
Income from continuing operatiol
Income from discontinued operatia

Net income

Diluted earnings per common sha
Income from continuing operatiol
Income from discontinued operatic

Net income

Average common shares outstanding (in thousa
Basic
Diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktetements.
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(in thousands, except per share amounts)

$593,32¢
27,60:

620,92¢

416,63:
94,42¢
51,51¢
37,66
12,69:

612,92¢

8,00(
4,36t

724

4,35¢

50,31:
50,83:

$507,33:
7,95¢

515,28

345,53
82,51

41,00:
12,28¢

481,34,

33,94
14,64¢

(1,420)

17,87:

$ 17,87¢

$ 0.3¢

$ 0.3¢

$ 0.3t

$ 0.3t

50,03¢
50,59¢

$523,80:
28,07¢

551,87¢

361,66
61,44
36,56:¢

98C

460,65¢

91,22(
40,57:

3,05¢

53,70¢
9,811

$ 63,517

$ 1.0¢
0.1¢

$ 1.0%

$ 1l.2¢

49,82t
50,34¢




Consolidated Balance Sheets

ASSETS
September 30 2004 2003
(in thousands)
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalel $ 65,29¢ $ 38,18¢
Accounts receivable, less reserve of $1,265 in 20@4$1,319 in 200 133,26: 91,08¢
Inventories 20,82¢ 22,53
Deferred income taxe 4,34¢ 1,93t
Prepaid expenses and otl 22,15¢ 45,721
Total current asse 245,88t 199,46t
INVESTMENTS 161,53: 158,77(
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, at cos
Contract drilling equipmer 1,531,93 1,490,38!
Construction in progres 1,22¢ 45,00¢
Real estate propertit 56,30" 56,24
Other 93,64( 87,57(
1,683,11 1,679,211
Less-accumulated depreciation and amortiza 684,43! 621,00!
Net property, plant and equipme 998,67 1,058,20!
OTHER ASSETS 752 1,32¢
TOTAL ASSETS $1,406,84. $1,417,771
| |

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktetements.
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LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

September 30

2004

2003

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Notes payabli
Accounts payabl
Accrued liabilities

Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Long-term notes payabl
Deferred income taxe
Other

Total noncurrent liabilitie:
SHAREHOLDERY EQUITY:

Common stock, $.10 par value, 80,000,000 sharémaned, 53,528,952 shares iss!

Preferred stock, no par value, 1,000,000 sharé®eréd, no shares issu

Additional paic-in capital

Retained earning

Unearned compensatit

Accumulated other comprehensive inca

Less treasury stock, 3,083,516 shares in 2004 88,588 shares in 2003, at ¢
Total shareholde’ equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERSE' EQUITY

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktetements.
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(in thousands, except share data)

28,01:
31,89

59,90:
200,00(
194,57:

38,25¢

432,83:

5,35¢

85,46¢
828,76:

36,25:

955,83
41,72¢

914,11(

$1,406,84

$ 30,00(
29,63(
28,98¢

88,61¢
200,00(
183,67.
28,22¢

411,90:

5,35¢

83,30:
840,77
(10)
33,66¢

963,08¢
45,83¢

917,25:

$1,417,771




Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

Common Stock

Accumulated

Additional Treasury Stock Other
Paid-in Unearned Retained Comprehensive
Shares Amount Capital Compensation Earnings Shares Amount Income (Loss) Total
(in thousands, except per share amounts)
Balance, September 30, 20 53,52¢ $5,35: $80,32¢ $(1,817) $943,10¢ 3,67¢ $(49,807) $ 49,30¢ $1,026,47
Comprehensive Incom
Net Income 63,51 63,51,
Other comprehensive los
Unrealized losses on
available-forsale securitie
net (25,449 (25,449
Derivatives instruments
losses, ne (68) (68)
Minimum pension liability
adjustment, ne (7,612 (7,612
Total other comprehensive lo (33,129
Total comprehensive incon 30,38¢
Distribution of Cimarex Energy
Co. Stock (152,20 (152,20
Cash dividends ($.31 per sha (15,497 (15,499
Exercise of stock optior 1,09¢ (181) 2,45t 3,55¢
Forfeiture of Restricted Stock
Award 88 15€ 23 (244)
Tax benefit of stock-based
awards 97¢ 97¢
Amortization of deferred
compensatiol 1,46¢€ 1,46¢€
Balance, September 30, 20 53,52¢ 5,35 82,48¢ (190 838,92¢ 3,51¢ (47,59) 16,18( 895,17(
Comprehensive Incom
Net Income 17,87: 17,87:
Other comprehensive incorr
Unrealized gains on
available-forsale securitie
net 15,00¢ 15,00¢
Derivatives instruments
amort., ne 982 982
Minimum pension liability
adjustment, ne 1,501 1,501
Total other comprehensive
gain 17,48¢
Total comprehensive incon 35,36!
Cash dividends ($.32 per sha (16,02¢ (16,02¢)
Exercise of stock optior 441 (12¢)  1,75: 2,19¢
Tax benefit of stock-based
awards 372 372
Amortization of deferred
compensatiol 18C 18C
Balance, September 30, 2C 53,52¢ 5,35 83,30: (10) 840,77¢ 3,38¢ (45,83 33,66¢ 917,25:
Comprehensive Incom
Net Income 4,35¢ 4,35¢

Other comprehensive income
(loss):



Unrealized gains on
available-forsale securitie

net 3,721 3,721
Derivatives instruments
amort., ne 72 72
Minimum pension liability
adjustment, ne (1,209 (1,209
Total other comprehensive
gain 2,58¢
Comprehensive incomr 6,94:
Cash dividends ($.3225 per
share) (16,377 (16,377
Exercise of stock optior 813 (305) 4,11« 4,927
Tax benefit of stock-based
awards 1,351 1,351
Amortization of deferred
compensatiol 10 10
Balance, September 30, 2C 53,52¢ $5,35: $85,46¢ $ — $ 828,76 3,08/ $(41,72¢9 $36,25: $ 914,11
| I | | I L] I |

The accompanying notes are an integral part okteegements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended September 3(C 2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Income from continuing operatiol $ 4,35¢ $ 17,87 $ 53,70¢
Adjustments to reconcile income from continuing @iens to net cash provided by
operating activities
Depreciatior 94,42¢ 82,51 61,447
Asset impairment charg 51,51¢ — —
Equity in (income) loss of affiliates before incomages (1,169 2,29( (5,019
Amortization of deferred compensati 10 18C 1,122
Gain on sales of securiti (22,76¢6) (5,529 (25,55)
Non-monetary investment (gain) lo (2,52)) — 1,204
Gain on sale of property, plant and equiprn (5,377 (3,689 (1,399
Deferred income tax expen 5,93¢ 41,39 21,147
Other— net (98) 33¢€ 791
Change in assets and liabilitie
Accounts receivabl (25,339 1,51¢ 24,14¢
Inventories 1,707 251 1,04z
Prepaid expenses and otl 24,14; (29,359 24,38
Accounts payabl (1,61¢) (11,419 (3,769
Accrued liabilities 2,87( (1,287 95t
Deferred income taxe 2,32 (16€) 2,98¢
Other noncurrent liabilitie 6,997 1,58¢ (5,429
131,04: 78,63: 98,06¢
Net cash provided by operating activit 135,40( 96,50« 151,77:
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Capital expenditure (88,977) (246,30) (312,069
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipt 7,941 6, 72( 4,13¢
Purchase of investmer — (5,65€)
Proceeds from sale of securit 14,03: 18,21t 47,14¢
Net cash used in investing activit| (66,999 (221,36¢) (266,439
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from lor-term debt — 100,00( 100,00(
Payments on lor-term debt — — (50,000
(Decrease) increase in st-term notes (30,000 30,00( —
Dividends paic (16,227 (16,026 (15,22)
Proceeds from exercise of stock opti 4,927 2,19¢ 3,55¢
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi (41,295 116,16¢ 38,33:
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Net cash provided by operating activit — — 62,79:
Net cash (used in) investing activiti — — (55,237
Cash of discontinued operations at spit — — (13,177
Net cash used in discontinued operati — — (5,617
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 27,10% (8,699 (81,949
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pe 38,18¢ 46,88: 128,82t
Cash and cash equivalents, end of pe $ 65,29¢ $ 38,18¢ $ 46,88:
| | |

The accompanying notes are an integral part oEtegement:
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2004, 2003 and 2
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include tw@ants of Helmerich & Payne, Inc. (the Compangyl &s wholly-owned subsidiaries.
Fiscal years of the Company'’s foreign consolidatedrations end on August 31 to facilitate reporthgonsolidated results.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

On September 30, 2002, the Company distributedp&@€ent of the common stock of Cimarex Energy Gehé Company’s shareholders.
Cimarex Energy Co. held the Company’s exploratioa production business and has been accounted fiseontinued operations in the
accompanying consolidated financial statementsegiindicated otherwise, the information in theeadb consolidated financial statements
relates to the continuing operations of the Comgaeg Note 2).

Certain amounts in the accompanying consolidateghfiial statements for prior periods have beemssified to conform to current year
presentation.

TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The Company has determined that the functionakoay for its foreign subsidiaries is the U.S. dolkoreign currency transaction gain
(losses) were $(2.2) million, $.4 million, and &pmillion, for 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectivdlilese amounts are included in direct
operating costs.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith generally accepted accounting principleguiees management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the amounts reporttteigonsolidated financial statements and accogipgmotes. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cestdecumulated depreciation. Substantially all @ryp plant and equipment are depreciated
using the straight-line method based on the estichaseful lives of the assets (contract drillingipment, 4-15 years; real estate buildings
and equipment, 10-50 years; and other, 3-33 yeting) Company charges the cost of maintenance gaitsdo direct operating cost, while
betterments and refurbishments are capitalized.

CAPITALIZATION OF INTEREST

The Company capitalizes interest on major projeating construction. Interest is capitalized onrbaed funds, with the rate based on the
average interest rate on related debt. Capitalittedest for 2004, 2003, and 2002 was $.5 mill&hg million, and $2.5 million, respectively.
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VALUATION OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS

The Company periodically evaluates the carryingialf long-lived assets to be held and used, imatpiohtangible assets, when events or
circumstances warrant such a review. The Compasggrezes impairment losses for long-lived assetsl s operations when indicators of
impairment are present and the undiscounted casls fexpected to be generated by the asset areffiotesit to recover the carrying amount
of the asset.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in tErkivestments readily convertible into cash wimiature within three months from the
date of purchase.

INVENTORIES AND SUPPLIES

Inventories and supplies are primarily replacenpamts and supplies held for use in our drillingragpiens. Inventories and supplies are va
at the lower of cost (moving average or actualpharket value.

DRILLING REVENUES

Contract drilling revenues are comprised primaoflylaywork drilling contracts for which the relatesl’enues and expenses are recognized a
work progresses. For certain contracts, the Compaesives lump-sum payments for the mobilizationigg and other drilling equipment.
Revenues earned, net of direct costs incurrechforrtobilization, are deferred and recognized dvetérm of the related drilling contract.
Costs incurred to relocate rigs and other drilkngipment to areas in which a contract has not beeared are expensed as incurred. The
Company recognizes reimbursements received foobpbcket expenses incurred as revenues and accfurdut-of-pocket expenses as
direct costs.

RENT REVENUES

The Company enters into leases with tenants ireittal properties consisting primarily of retaibdamulti-tenant warehouse space. The lease
terms of tenants occupying space in the retailarsrand warehouse buildings range from one togansy Minimum rents are recognized on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relatedés. Overage and percentage rents are basedotstesales volume. The Company’s rent
revenues are as follows:

Years ended September 3( 2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)

Minimum rents $7,49( $7,33¢ $6,98(

Overage and percentage re $1,207 $ 76€ $ 91t
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At September 30, 2004, minimum future rental incdambe received on noncancelable operating leases as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Amount
2005 $ 6,52¢
2006 5,65¢
2007 5,10:
2008 4,09z
2009 3,17¢
Thereaftel 7,76¢
Total $32,31¢
|

INVESTMENTS

The cost of securities used in determining realgaids and losses is based on the average costdfdbe security sold. Net income in 2004
includes approximately $1.5 million, $0.03 per €han a diluted basis, on gains related to non-neopétansactions within the Company’s
available-forsale investment portfolio which were accountedafioiair value. Net income in 2002 includes a lasapproximately $.5 millior
$0.01 per share on a diluted basis, resulting fteenrCompany’s assessment that the decline in meaake¢ of certain available-for-sale
securities below their financial cost basis wagpthan temporary. There were no losses in 2002608 as the result of a decline in market
values that were considered other than temporathdZ ompany.

Investments in companies owned from 20 to 50 permenaccounted for using the equity method with@ompany recognizing its
proportionate share of the income or loss of eaehstee. The Company owned approximately 21.7 peofeAtwood Oceanics, Inc.
(Atwood) at both September 30, 2004 and 2003. Titegl market value of the Company’s investment $da2.6 million and $72 million at
September 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Retaasdngs at September 30, 2004 and 2003 inclygfa®ximately $29 million and

$28 million, respectively, of undistributed earrsmaf Atwood.

In October 2004, the Company sold 1,000,000 shafriés position in Atwood as part of a 2,175,00@ighpublic offering of Atwood. The si
generated approximately $16.5 million ($0.32 péutdd share) of net income for the first quartefismtal 2005. With its remaining 2,000,000
shares of Atwood, the Company will own approximatE3.3 percent of Atwood. The Company will contiriaeaccount for Atwood on the
equity method as the Company continues to havéfisignt influence through its board of director tea
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Summarized financial information of Atwood is afidws:

September 30 2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)
Gross revenue $163,45¢ $144,76¢ $149,15°
Costs and expens 155,86° 157,56¢ 120,87.
Net income (loss $ 7,58i $(12,807) $ 28,28t
I L] L]
Helmerich & Payne, In’s equity in net income (loss), net of income te $ 724 $ (1,419 $ 4,20¢
| | |
Current assel $ 92,96¢ $ 72,18 $ 71,81
Noncurrent asse 405,97( 447 ,46: 372,71
Current liabilities 60,05: 40,50¢ 24,41¢
Noncurrent liabilities 167,29 215,75 143,98:
Shareholder equity 271,58¢ 263,38! 276,13:
I L] L]
Helmerich & Payne, In’s investmen $ 57,82« $ 56,65¢ $ 58,93"
| | |

INCOME TAXES

Deferred income taxes are computed using the itigloilethod and are provided on all temporary dédferes between the financial basis and
the tax basis of the Company’s assets and liasliti

OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Company sponsors a health care plan that meydst retirement medical benefits to retired eygss. Employees who retire after
November 1, 1992 and elect to participate in tlaa play the entire estimated cost of such ben

The Company has accrued a liability for estimatedker's compensation claims incurred. The liabifity other benefits to former or inactive
employees after employment but before retiremenbtsnaterial.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is based on the weightege number of common shares outstanding dunmgériod. Diluted earnings per share
includes the dilutive effect of stock options aedtricted stock.

EMPLOYEE STOCK-BASED AWARDS

Employee stock-based awards are accounted for Wmabeunting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Aceoimg for Stock Issued to
Employees” and related interpretations. Fixed glaimmon stock options generally do not result in gensation expense, because the
exercise price of the options issued by the Compayuals the market price of the underlying stockhendate of grant. The plans under
which the Company issues stock based awards acelmrd more fully in Note 6. The following tabléuistrates the effect on net income and
earnings per share as if the Company had appleeththvalue recognition provisions of SFAS No. 128ccounting for Stock-Based
Compensation.”
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September 30, 2004 2003 2002

(in thousands, except per share amount:
Net income, as reporte $ 4,35¢ $17,87: $63,51"
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expensgdiedlin the Consolidated

Statements of Income, net of related tax eff 6 112 90¢
Deduct: Total stock based employee compensatioaresepdetermined under fair value
based method for all awards, net of related tascts (4,172) (4,387) (3,359
Pro forma net incom $ 19: $13,59¢ $61,07:
| | |
Earnings per shar
Basic-as reportet $ 0.0¢ $ 0.3¢ $ 1.27
| | |
Basic-pro forma $ 0.0C $ 0.27 $ 1.2t
| | |
Diluted-as reportet $ 0.0¢ $ 0.3t $ 1.2¢
| | |
Diluted-pro forma $ 0.0C $ 0.27 $ 1.21
| | |

These pro forma amounts may not be representatifigure disclosures since the estimated fair valugtock options is amortized to expe
over the vesting period and additional options tpeygranted in future years.

TREASURY STOCK

Treasury stock purchases are accounted for undaro$t method whereby the cost of the acquirek $soecorded as treasury stock. Gains
and losses on the subsequent reissuance of shareredited or charged to additional paid-in-cdpitang the average-cost method.

NOTE 2 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On September 30, 2002, the Company’s distributfa00 percent of the common stock of Cimarex En&gyand the merger of Key
Production Company, Inc. with Cimarex was completeadtonnection with the distribution, approximt@€b6.6 million shares of the Cimarex
Energy Co. common stock on a diluted basis werteildiged to shareholders of the Company of recor&eptember 27, 2002. The Cimarex
Energy Co. stock distribution was recorded as @did and resulted in a decrease to consolidaieisblders’ equity of approximately
$152.2 million. The Company does not own any comstonk of Cimarex Energy Co.

Under terms of a tax sharing agreement, each pagyagreed to indemnify the other in respect abakks for which it is responsible under
tax sharing agreement. Cimarex is responsiblelféaxes related to the exploration and producbasiness for all past and future periods,
including all taxes arising from the Cimarex busmerior to the time Cimarex was formed, and agie@ésld the Company harmless in
respect of those
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taxes. Cimarex is entitled to receive all refundg eredits of taxes previously paid with respedhmexploration and production business.
Cimarex will not receive the benefit of any losssonilar tax attribute arising during the time thagses from the Cimarex business are
included in the Compang’consolidated federal income tax return. The Catppamains responsible for all taxes related tdotiginess of th
Company other than the exploration and productigsirtess and has agreed to indemnify Cimarex iremsyf any liability for any such
taxes.

Summarized results of discontinued operationsHeryear ended September 30, 2002 is as follows:

September 30 2002
(in thousands)
Revenue: $172,82°
Income from operation:

Income before income tax 15,13¢
Tax provision 5,32
Income from discontinued operatic $ 9,811
|

NOTE 3 IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS

The Company periodically evaluates long-lived asgdten events or circumstances indicate, in managesijudgment, that the carrying
value of such assets may not be recoverable. Chdahgecould trigger such an assessment may in@gignificant decline in revenue or c
margin per day, extended periods of low rig utlii@a, changes in market demand for a specific asssblescence, completion of specific
contracts, and/or overall general market condititfnes review of the long-lived assets indicateattiine carrying value of certain of these
assets is more than the estimated undiscounteckfosish flows, an impairment charge is made tosadiie carrying value to the estimated
fair market value of the asset.

In evaluating the Company’s U.S. Offshore Platftmnsiness in the Gulf of Mexico, indicators of inypaént were present, including declines
in revenue and margin per day, industry and Compdatyorm rig utilization, and bid activity. As thesult of the declining financial trends
and the generally unfavorable market conditionth@éGulf of Mexico, management completed an anslgbthe general market conditions in
the offshore platform rig business and the prospecharket demand for each of the 12 offshore sigaed by the Company. Based on this
analysis, management determined that the carryahgevof certain offshore rigs exceeded the estitdhateliscounted future cash flows
associated with these assets; therefore, an impatrainarge was required. The amount of the impaiticiearge represented the difference
between the estimated fair value of the assettarzhirying value. Because quoted market priceseatravailable for offshore platform rigs,
the fair value was determined based on estimatabdited future cash flows and rig utilization. IClisws were
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estimated by management considering factors suphoapective market demand, recent changes inddmiyand its effect on each rig’s
marketability and cash investment required, suitglif rig size and makeup to existing platforrasd new competitive dynamics due to
lower industry utilization.

Based on its analysis, the Company recorded a $Billibn pre-tax impairment charge to the Offsh&latform segment in the fourth quarter
of fiscal 2004. In conjunction with the impairmettarge, the Company retired rig 108 at Septembe2@®, which brings the number of
available platform rigs to eleven. The Company a¢shiced the depreciable lives of five platfornsrig four years and the salvage value of
each of the offshore rigs to $1.0 million. As aulesf the impairment charge and the change inefg@gble lives and salvage values,
depreciation expense in future years in the Offstidatform segment will be reduced by approxima$y) million a year.

NOTE 4 NOTES PAYABLE AND LONG-TERM DEBT

At September 30, 2004, the Company had $200 milidong-term debt outstanding at fixed rates aradumities as summarized in the
following table.

(In thousands)

Issue Amount Maturity Date Interest Rate
$25,00C August 15, 200° 5.51%
$25,00C August 15, 200! 5.91%
$75,00C August 15, 201. 6.4€%
$75,00C August 15, 201« 6.5€%

The terms of the debt obligations require the Camgga maintain a minimum ratio of debt to total italization. The proceeds of the debt
issuances were used to repay $50 million of outttandebt, to fund the Company’s rig constructioogvam and for other general corporate
purposes. This debt is held by various entitiekiging $8.0 million held by a company affiliatedttvione of the Company’s Board members.

At September 30, 2004, the Company had a commuttedcured line of credit totaling $50 million. lezk of credit totaling $13 million were
outstanding against the line, leaving $37 millieaitable to borrow. Under terms of the line of détethe Company must maintain certain
financial ratios including debt to total capitalipa and debt to earnings before interest, taxegratiation, and amortization, and maintain
certain levels of liquidity and tangible net worifhe interest rate varies based on LIBOR plus t875125 percent or prime minus

1.75 percent to prime minus 1.50 percent depenalingitios described above.
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NOTE 5 INCOME TAXES

The components of the provision (benefit) for ineotaxes from continuing operations are as follows:

Years Ended September 3(C 2004 2003 2002
(In thousands)
CURRENT:

Federal $(5,997) $(34,495) $13,32¢
Foreign 4,622 6,87( 5,08(
State (1949 88: 1,022
(1,569 (26,747) 19,42¢

DEFERRED:
Federal 4,037 42,83t 16,01¢
Foreign 1,90z (3,387 3,732
State (5) 1,93¢ 1,39¢
5,93¢ 41,39 21,147
TOTAL PROVISION: $ 4,36 $ 14,64¢ $40,57:
| I |

The amounts of domestic and foreign income (lassjfcontinuing operations are as follows:

Years Ended September 3( 2004 2003 2002

(In thousands)
Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeome taxes and equity in income (loss) of

affiliates:
Domestic $(2,977) $31,16¢ $82,01:
Foreign 10,97: 2,77¢ 9,20¢
$ 8,00( $33,94: $91,22(
| | |
The components of the Company’s net deferred &biliies are as follows:
September 30, 2004 2003

(In thousands)
Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipme $188,40¢ $164,07¢
Available-for-sale securitie 28,20: 25,10¢
Equity investment 17,79: 17,34¢
Total deferred tax liabilitie 234,40! 206,53

Deferred tax asset
Pension reserve 7,28: 4,91¢
Insurance reserve 4,45z 3,68¢
Net operating loss carryforwar 21,073 4,074
Alternative minimum tax credit carryforwan 2,54z 5,33:
Financial accrual 7,574 4,44¢
Other 1,25(C 2,337
Total deferred tax asse 44,17¢ 24,79¢
Net deferred tax liabilitie $190,22° $181,73°
| |

Reclassifications have been made to the fiscal 2@l&@nces for certain components of deferred tagtasand liabilities in order to conform to
the current yei's presentatior
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities included indabrsolidated balance sheets are as follows:

September 30 2004 2003
(In thousands)
Other current asse $ 4,34¢ $ 1,93t
Deferred income taxe (194,579 (183,67
Total $(190,277) $(181,73)
| |

As of September 30, 2004, the Company’s federalstéaite net operating loss carryforwards for incoaxepurposes were approximately
$43 million and $66 million, respectively. If notilized, the federal net operating loss carryfordgawill expire in fiscal 2024, and the state
net operating loss carryforwards will begin to egph fiscal 2008.

Effective income tax rates on income from contiguaperations as compared to the U.S. Federal intcarmate are as follows:

Years Ended September 30, 2004 2003 2002

U.S. Federal income tax rée 35% 35% 35%
Effect of foreign taxe 18 4 7
State income taxe — 4 2
Other 2 — —

Effective income tax rat 55% 43% 44%
| | |

NOTE 6 SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

In December 2001, the board of directors authorthedepurchase of up to 2,000,000 shares perdaigear of the Company’s common
stock in the open market or private transactiom& fepurchased shares will be held in treasuryuaad for general corporate purposes
including use in the Company’s benefit plans. Tlen@any did not repurchase any shares in fiscal 22083, or 2002.

The Company has several plans providing for comstonk based awards to employees and to non-empthsestors. The plans permit the
granting of various types of awards including stopkions and restricted stock. Restricted stock beagranted for no consideration other
than prior and future services. The purchase géreshare for stock options may not be less thakeanharice of the underlying stock on the
date of grant. Stock options expire ten years gfitent.

In March 2001, the Company adopted the 2000 Stocértive Plan (the “Stock Incentive Plan”). Thecktincentive Plan was effective
December 6, 2000 and will terminate December 6020hder this plan, the Company is authorized tmgoptions for up to 3,000,000
shares of the Company’s common stock at an exgpcise not less than the fair market value of temon stock on the date of grant. Up to
450,000 shares of the total authorized may be gdatiat participants as restricted stock awards.&here no restricted stock grants in fiscal
2004, 2003, or 2002.

On September 30, 2002, the Company distributedp&@€ent of the common stock of Cimarex Energy Gohé Company’s shareholders.
The distribution was recorded as a dividend andlted in a decrease to consolidated shareholdgtstyeof approximately $152.2 million.
Any options held by Cimarex employees at the diation date were automatically forfeited per thene of the Company’s stock incentive
plans. Both vested and unvested options held byiréng participants at September 30, 2002 werestelji(the number of options and
exercise price) to reflect the change in the valu€ompany common stock as the result of the spwfo€imarex. The adjustment was made
in such a way that the aggregate intrinsic valugnefoptions and the ratio of the exercise prigespare to the market value per share
remained the same.
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The following summary reflects the stock optionatt for the Company’s common stock and relatefdimation for 2004, 2003, and 2002
(shares in thousands):

2004 2003 2002

Weighted-Average Weighted-Average Weighted-Average
Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price
Outstanding at October 4,327 $21.41 3,87¢ $20.2¢ 3,13¢ $25.7¢
Granted 46¢ 24.1¢ 611 27.7¢ 82C 29.8¢
Exercisec (30%) 16.1¢ (130) 16.9: (181) 19.61
Adjustment for Cimarex spino — — — — 92¢€ —
Forfeited/Expirec (34) 25.3¢ (29) 23.8¢ (82¢€) 28.1¢
Outstanding on September ! 4,457 $22.0: 4,327 $21.41 3,87¢ $20.2¢
Exercisable on September : 2,991 $20.6:2 2,57¢ $19.3¢ 1,93¢ $19.07
Shares available to gra 1,15¢ 1,59 2,19t

The following table summarizes information abowic&toptions at September 30, 2004 (shares in tinols3a

Outstanding Stock Options Exercisable Stock Options
Range of Weighted-Average Weighted-Average Weighted-Average
Exercise Prices Options Remaining Life Exercise Price Options Exercise Price
$10.22 to $12.7 68E 2.6 $11.8¢ 68E $11.8¢
$18.83 to $22.6 1,55( 5.€ $20.81 1,17¢ $20.27
$24.59 to $28.0 2,22: 6.8 $26.01 1,13¢ $26.3(
$10.22 to $28.0 4,45] 5.8 $22.0¢ 2,997 $20.6:

The weighted-average fair value of options at teant date during 2004, 2003, and 2002 was $1823.72, and $12.47, respectively. The
estimated fair value of each option granted isudated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing modék following summarizes the
weighted-average assumptions used in the model:

2004 2003 2002
Risk-free interest rat 3.7% 3.1% 4.C%
Expected stock volatilit 44% 48% 48%
Dividend yield .8% .8% .8%
Expected years until exerci 5.5 4.t 4.t

On September 30, 2004, the Company had 50,445 486ading common stock purchase rights (“Righpsifsuant to terms of the Rights
Agreement dated January 8, 1996. Under the terrtteedRights Agreement each Right entitled the hdildereof to purchase from the
Company one half of one unit consisting of one thwatsandth of a share of Series A Junior Partitigd®referred Stock (“Preferred Stock”),
without par value, at a price of $90 per unit. Bixercise price and the number of units of Prefegtdk issuable on exercise of the Rights
are subject to adjustment in certain cases to ptelikition. The Rights will be attached to the ecoon stock certificates and are not
exercisable or transferrable apart from the comstook, until ten business
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days after a person acquires 15 percent or maiteeafutstanding common stock or ten business dalgsving the commencement of a ten
offer or exchange offer that would result in a perswning 15 percent or more of the outstandingroom stock. In the event the Company is
acquired in a merger or certain other business gmatibn transactions (including one in which then@any is the surviving corporation), or
more than 50 percent of the Company’s assets aimggpower is sold or transferred, each holder Bight shall have the right to receive,
upon exercise of the Right, common stock of theuaiztty company having a value equal to two timesedkercise price of the Right. The
Rights are redeemable under certain circumstanc®& @l per Right and will expire, unless earledeemed, on January 31, 2006. As long as
the Rights are not separately transferrable, thagamy will issue one half of one Right with eaclvrehare of common stock issued.

NOTE 7 EARNINGS PER SHARE

A reconciliation of the weighted-average commornrefautstanding on a basic and diluted basis figllasvs:

2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)

Basic weighte-average share 50,31: 50,03¢ 49,82t
Effect of dilutive shares

Stock options 521 55E 50¢

Restricted stoc — 2 12

521 557 52C

Diluted weighte-average share 50,83: 50,59¢ 50,34¢

| I |

At September 30, 2004, options to purchase 1,0D768res of common stock at a weighted-average pfi$27.84 were outstanding, but
were not included in the computation of dilutedné@gs per common share. Inclusion of these shaoesgde antidilutive.

At September 30, 2003, options to purchase 1,030sRA8res of common stock at a weighted-average pfi§27.86 were outstanding but
were not included in the computation of dilutedné@gs per common share. Inclusion of these shaoesdibe antidilutive.

Restricted stock of 44,675 shares at a weightedageeprice of $30.38 and options to purchase 481stares of common stock at a
weighted-average price of $27.98 were outstandir8eptember 30, 2002, but were not included irctimputation of diluted earnings per
common share. Inclusion of these shares would tidilative.
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NOTE 8 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company had $200 million of long-term debt tartding at September 30, 2004 which had an estihfatevalue of $216.4 million. The
debt was valued based on the prices of similarrgesuwith similar terms and credit ratings. Then@pany used the expertise of an outside
investment banking firm to assist with the estinttthe fair value of the long-term debt. The Compa line of credit and notes payable bear
interest at market rates and the cost of borrowiigsy, would approximate fair value. The estiethfair value of the Company’s available-
for-sale securities is primarily based on marketitgs.

The following is a summary of available-for-salewwsties, which excludes those accounted for uttdeequity method of accounting (see
Note 1):

Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealizec Estimated Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

(in thousands)
Equity Securities
September 30, 20( $27,81: $70,44¢ $17C $98,08¢
September 30, 20( $33,30( $64,27¢ $ 0 $97,57¢

During the years ended September 30, 2004, 20@32@02, marketable equity available-for-sale sdéesrivith a fair value at the date of sale
of $30.9 million, $18.2 million, and $46.7 milliorespectively, were sold. For the same years, thesgealized gains on such sales of
available-for-sale securities totaled $22.8 milli$8.6 million, and $25.9 million, respectively,cathe gross realized losses totaled $7
thousand, $3.1 million and $232 thousand, respelgtiv
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NOTE 9 ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS )

The table below presents changes in the compoonéatcumulated other comprehensive income (loss).

Balance at September 30, 2(
2002 Change
Pre-income tax amour
Income tax provisiol
Amortization of swap (net of $7 income tax bene
Realized gains in net income (net of $9,431 inctamg

Balance at September 30, 2(

2003 Change
Pre-income tax amour
Income tax provisiol
Amortization of swap (net of $602 income tax bet)
Realized gains in net income (net of $2,101 inctamg

Balance at September 30, 2(

2004 Change
Pre-income tax amour
Income tax provisiol
Amortization of swap (net of $45 income tax bene
Realized gains in net income (net of $9,659 inctamg

Balance at September 30, 2(

Unrealized Appreciation
(Depreciation)

Interest Rate

Minimum Pension

on Securities Swap Liability Total
(in thousands)

$ 50,29¢ $ (986 $ — $ 49,30¢
(16,229 (127) (12,27)) (28,63))
6,167 48 4,66¢ 10,88(
— 11 — 11
(15,38%) — — (15,38¢)
(25,449 (68) (7,617) (33,129
24,84¢ (1,059 (7,612 16,18(
29,73 — 2,421 32,15:
(11,299 — (920) (12,21%)
— 982 — 982
(3,42¢) — — (3,42¢)
15,00¢ 982 1,501 17,48¢
39,85: (72) (6,117) 33,66¢
31,42( — (1,95) 29,46¢
(11,940 — 74z (11,199
— 72 — 72
(15,759 — — (15,759
3,721 72 (1,209 2,58¢
$ 43,57: $ — $ (7,320 $ 36,25:
L] L] L] L]
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NOTE 10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company maintains a noncontributory definedsjpemplan for substantially all U.S. employees wieet certain age and service
requirements. In July 2003, the Company revisedttlenerich & Payne, Inc. Employee Retirement Pi&e(sion Plan”) to close the
Pension Plan to new participants effective Octdh@003, and reduce benefit accruals for currertigi@ants through September 30, 2006 at
which time benefit accruals will be discontinuedi dne Pension Plan frozen.

The following table and other information in thatnote provide information at September 30 abéocGompany sponsored domestic defined
pension plan as required by SFAS No. 132 (Revi€@8, “Employers’ Disclosures About Pensions ankdeDPostretirement Benefits.”

Change in benefit obligation:

Years Ended September 3(C 2004 2003
(in thousands)

Benefit obligation at beginning of ye $71,17¢ $68,13¢
Service cos 3,94: 5,401
Interest cos 4,40: 4,42¢
Curtailments — (8,449
Actuarial loss 5,98t 6,26¢
Benefits paic (3,289 (4,609
Benefit obligation at end of ye $82,22: $71,17¢

| |

Change in plan assets:

Years Ended September 3(C 2004 2003
(in thousands)

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of \ $ 53,63: $ 48,28¢
Actual gain (loss) on plan assi 6,29¢ 9,95¢
Benefits paic (3,289 (4,609
Fair value of plan assets at end of y $ 56,65( $ 53,63¢

I I
Funded status of the pli $(25,577) $(17,539)
Unrecognized net actuarial lo 18,21 15,05
Unrecognized prior service cc 1 20
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (before (11,807 (9,85€)
Accrued benefit cos $(19,167) $(12,329)

I I

Weighted-average assumptions:

Years Ended September 3(C 2004 2003 2002
Discount rate 5.7%% 6.25% 6.7%
Expected return on plan ass 8.0(% 8.0(% 8.0(%
Rate of compensation incree 5.0(% 5.0(% 5.0(%
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The Company anticipates that no funding of its RenBlan will be required in fiscal 2005.

COMPONENTS OF NET PERIODIC PENSION EXPENSE:

Years Ended September 3( 2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)

Service cos $ 3,944 $ 5,401 $ 4,76¢
Interest cos 4,40: 4,42: 3,83t
Expected return on plan ass (4,232 (3,807 (4,804
Amortization of prior service co: 19 18C 23¢
Amortization of transition ass — — (540
Recognized net actuarial lo 76C 1,55( 12C
Curtailment gair — 84 —
Net pension expen: $ 4,89 $ 7,831 $ 3,61¢

| | |

The following table reflects the expected beneéitbe paid from the Pension Plan in each of thé fiex fiscal years, and in the aggregate for
the five years thereafter.

Years Ended September 30,

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 201(-2014 Total

(in thousands)

$3,967 $4,11: $4,13¢ $4,201 $4,27¢ $ 23,51 $ 44,20°
Included in the Pension Plan is an unfunded supghéah executive retirement plan.

The accumulated benefit obligation for the defifeshsion Plan was $75.7 million, $66.1 million as&$$ million at September 30, 2004,
2003, and 2002, respectively.

The Company evaluates the Pension Plan to detemtisther any additional minimum liability is reqedt. As a result of changes in the
interest rates, an adjustment to the minimum pengdbility was required. The adjustment to thdilidy is recorded as a charge to
accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tasthareholders’ equity in the consolidated balateets.

INVESTMENT STRATEGY AND ASSET ALLOCATION

The Company’s investment policy and strategieseatablished with a lontgrm view in mind. The investment strategy is inted to help pa
the cost of the Plan while providing adequate sgcto meet the benefits promised under the Pléa® Company maintains a diversified asset
mix to minimize the risk of a material loss to fatfolio value that might occur from devaluatidnamy one investment. In determining the
appropriate asset mix, the Company’s financiahsftle and ability to fund potential shortfalls amnsidered.

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assédased on historical and projected rates afmdbr current and planned asset classes in
the Plans’ investment portfolio after analyzingtbigcal experience and future expectations of #taern and volatility of various asset classes.
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The target allocation for 2005 and the asset dilocdor the domestic Pension Plan at the endsaffi2004 and 2003, by asset category,
follows:

Percentage of Plan Assel

Target Allocation At September 30,
Asset Category 2005 2004 2003
U.S. equities 56% 57% 57%
International equitie 14 15 15
Fixed income 25 27 26
Real estate and oth 5 1 2
Total 10(% 10C% 10C%

The fair value of plan assets was $56.7 million $68.6 million at September 30, 2004 and 2003 aetsely, and the expected long-term
rate of return on these plan assets was 8% in 280848% in 2003.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

Substantially all employees on the United Statgsgleof the Company may elect to participate ie thompany sponsored 401(k)/Thrift Plan
by contributing a portion of their earnings. Then@@ny contributes amounts equal to 100 percenteofitst five percent of the participant’s
compensation subject to certain limitations. ExpenSompany contributions were $5.6 million, $5.8iom, and $5.2 million in 2004, 2003,

and 2002, respectively.
NOTE 11 SUPPLEMENTAL BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION

The following reflects the activity in the Compasyeserve for bad debt for 2004 and 2003:

2004 2003

(in thousands)
Reserve for bad dek

Balance at October 3 $1,31¢ $1,337%
Provision for bad det 15 45
Write-off of bad deb (69) (63)
Balance at September ¢ $1,26¢ $1,31¢

[ | [ |
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Accounts receivable, prepaid expenses, and actinlglities at September 30 consist of the follogin

September 30 2004 2003
(in thousands)
Accounts receivable
Trade receivable $116,42: $91,08¢
Investment sales receivab 16,83¢ —
$133,26: $91,08¢
| |
Prepaid expenses and ott
Time depositt $ 35C $ 32z
Income tax ass¢ 5,831 32,61¢
Deferred mobilizatior 2,84¢ 2,99:
Restricted cas 2,00 —
Other 11,12¢ 9,781
$ 22,15¢ $45,72:
I |
Accrued liabilities:
Taxes payabl- operations $ 6,531 $ 8,38¢
Workers compensation clair 2,871 2,82(
Payroll and employee benef 8,67¢ 6,76¢
Deferred income / prepa 2,84¢ 1,53t
Other 10,96! 9,47¢
$ 31,891 $28,98t¢
| |
NOTE 12 SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Years Ended September 3( 2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)
Cash payment:
Interest paid, net of amount capitaliz $12,65: $11,37¢ $ 477
Income taxes pai $ 7,01( $ 5,83¢ $9,77¢
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NOTE 13 RISK FACTORS
CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT

Financial instruments which potentially subject @@mpany to concentrations of credit risk consishprily of temporary cash investments
and trade receivables. The Company places tempoaatyinvestments with established financial ingtins and invests in a diversified
portfolio of highly rated, short-term money markettruments. The Company’s trade receivables anggpily with established companies in
the oil and gas industry and are typically not sedwy collateral. The Company provides an allovesfioc doubtful accounts, when necess
to cover estimated credit losses. Such an allowanibased on management’s knowledge of customeuats. No significant credit losses
have been experienced by the Company.

SELF-INSURANCE

The Company self-insures a significant portiontefeixpected losses under its worker's compensaj@meral, and automobile liability
programs in the United States. Insurance coveragd&en purchased for individual claims that ex&2ewhillion. The Company records
estimates for incurred outstanding liabilities fmresolved worker’'s compensation, general liab@laims and for claims that are incurred but
not reported. Estimates are based on historic eqper and statistical methods that the Companyg\edi are reliable. Nonetheless, insurance
estimates include certain assumptions and manadeuugments regarding the frequency and severiglaims, claim development, and
settlement practices. Unanticipated changes iretfeetors may produce materially different amowfitsxpense that would be reported under
these programs.

CONTRACT DRILLING OPERATIONS

International drilling operations are significawintributors to the Company'’s revenues and netpibfs possible that operating results could
be affected by the risks of such activities, inahgdeconomic conditions in the international maskietwhich the Company operates, political
and economic instability, fluctuations in currerechange rates, changes in international regulagapyirements, international employment
issues, and the burden of complying with foreigndaThese risks may adversely affect the Compdiugtse operating results and financial
position.

The Company is exposed to risks of currency devialnan Venezuela primarily as a result of bolivaceivable balances and bolivar cash
balances. In Venezuela, while approximately 60 gr@rof the Company’s billings to the Venezuelarncoinpany, PDVSA, are in U.S. dollars
and 40 percent are in the local currency, the boliPDVSA typically pays all accounts owed in bals. The Company, historically, has been
able to convert the bolivars received in paymerihefU.S. dollar-based billings into dollars inragly manner. In January 2003, the
Venezuelan government put into effect exchangerotsithat fixed the exchange rate at 1600 bolitaisne U.S. dollar and also prohibited
the Company, as well as other companies, from atingethe bolivar into U.S. dollars. In complianeéh applicable regulations, the
Company on October 1, 2003 submitted a requesEet®&¥enezuelan government seeking permission toerbexisting bolivar balances into
U.S. dollars. In January 2004 the Venezuelan gawent approved the conversion of bolivar cash balsbc U.S. dollars

62




and the remittance of those U.S. dollars as divdddsy the Company’s Venezuelan subsidiary to tt& based parent. The Company was
able to remit $8.8 million of such dividends in dary 2004. This reduced the Company’s exposuren@ecy devaluation in Venezuela.

As stated above, the Company is exposed to riskaroéncy devaluation in Venezuela primarily assuit of bolivar receivable balances and
bolivar cash balances. As a result of the 20 pembevaluation of the bolivar during fiscal 2004offr September 2003 through August 2004),
the Company experienced total devaluation loss&d & million during that same period. This 20 patodevaluation loss may not be
reflective of the potential for future devaluatimsses because of the exchange controls that erenty in place. There have been recent
press reports of a potential devaluation in cale2@85. However, the exact amount and timing ohsilevaluation is uncertain. While the
Company is unable to predict future devaluation'@mezuela, if fiscal 2005 activity levels are sinito fiscal 2004 and if a 10 percent to

20 percent devaluation would occur, the Companydcexiperience potential currency devaluation losaaging from approximately

$1.2 million to $2.3 million.

In late August 2003, the Venezuelan state petroleoimpany agreed, on a go-forward basis, to payrtgopaf the Company’s dollar-based
invoices in U.S. dollars. While this is a positidevelopment in light of the existing exchange oalstrthere is no guarantee as to how long
this arrangement will continue. Were this agreentemind, the Company would revert back to receitirgge payments in bolivars and thus
increase bolivar cash balances and exposure tdudeiom.

Venezuela continues to experience significant guwental instability. In the event that extendedlattrikes occur or turmoil increases, the
Company could experience shortages in materiakapglies necessary to operate some or all of itee¥elan drilling rigs.

NOTE 14 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
COMMITMENTS

The Company, on a regular basis, makes commitnfientse purchase of contract drilling equipment.S&ptember 30, 2004, the Company
did not have any material commitments for the pasehof drilling equipment.
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LEASES

In May 2003, the Company signed a six-year leasagproximately 114,000 square feet of office spaea downtown Tulsa, Oklahoma.
The Company also conducts certain operations selbaremises and leases telecommunication equipFgnte minimum lease payments
required under noncancelable operating leases @spiember 30, 2004 are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Amount

2005 $2,54:
2006 2,261
2007 1,84«
2008 1,41z
2009 1,40¢
Thereaftel 462
Total $9,92¢
|

Total rent expense was $2.0 million, $1.1 milliorda&1.0 million for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respetyive
NOTE 15 SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company operates principally in the contraittirly industry. The Company’s contract drilling $iness includes the following operating
segments: U.S. Land, U.S. Offshore Platform, amerivational. The contract drilling operations cehgirimarily of contracting Company-
owned drilling equipment primarily to major oil agds exploration companies. The Company’s primatsrinational areas of operation
include Venezuela, Colombia, Ecuador, ArgentinaBalivia. The Company also has a Real Estate segmieose operations are conducted
exclusively in the metropolitan area of Tulsa, @klma. The primary areas of operations include @nsijopping center and several multi-
tenant warehouses. Each reportable segment iatagitr business unit which is managed separatéher@ncludes investments and corporate
operations. As described in Note 2, the Companiy’'aral gas operations were distributed to Compdmayeholders on September 30, 2002.
Such operations have been treated as discontimerdtons and have been excluded from these seglisetdsures.

The Company evaluates performance of its segmastsdoupon operating profit or loss from operatimefore income taxes which includes
revenues from external and internal customersgtaoperating costs; depreciation; and allocatecdggrand administrative costs; but exclt
corporate costs for other depreciation and otheorire and expense. General and administrative aostllocated to the segments based
primarily on specific identification, and to thetemt that such identification was not practical otimer methods which the Company believes
to be a reasonable reflection of the utilizatiorsefvices provided. The accounting policies ofgbgments are the same as those described ir
Note 1, Summary of Accounting Policies. Intersegnsahes are accounted for in the same manner &s tealinaffiliated customel
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Summarized financial information of the Companygpartable segments for each of the years endeé@bpt 30, 2004, 2003, and 2002 is
shown in the following table:

Additions
External Inter - Total Operating Profit Total to Long-Lived
(in thousands) Sales Segment Sales (loss) Depreciation Assets Assets
2004
Contract Drilling
U.S. Land $347,790 $ — $347,79 $ 37,32¢ $56,52¢ $ 742,64. $ 68,68(
U.S. Offshore Platforr 84,99: — 84,99: (34,877 12,107 102,55 1,512
International Service 150,69¢ — 150,69¢ 14,03¢ 20,53( 261,89: 9,51:
583,48 — 583,48 16,48¢ 89,16¢ 1,107,009: 79,70
Real Estatt 9,84: 897 10,73¢ 4,24; 2,25¢ 33,04« 3,63¢
Other 27,60: — 27,60: — 3,007 266,70¢ 5,72¢
Eliminations — (897) (897) — — — —
Total $620,92( $ — $620,92¢ $ 20,72¢ $94,42¢ $1,406,84. $ 88,97
| | | | | | |
2003:
Contract Drilling
U.S. Land $273,99 $ — $273,99¢ $ 18,56¢ $44,72¢ $ 730,64: $216,59(
U.S. Offshore Platforr 112,63 — 112,63 36,30¢ 12,79¢ 170,58 7,191
International Service 109,81 — 109,81 5,14¢ 20,09: 243,91¢ 12,73
496,43t — 496,43t 60,02( 77,61% 1,145,141 236,51
Real Estati 10,89 1,43¢ 12,33 6,56¢ 2,53t 31,47: 7,62¢
Other 7,95¢ — 7,95: — 2,361 241,15¢ 2,15¢
Eliminations — (1,439 (1,439 — — — —
Total $515,28: $ — $515,28: $ 66,58¢ $82,51: $1,417,77 $246,30:
| | | | | | |
2002:
Contract Drilling
U.S. Land $231,63° $ B80S $232,44¢ $ 30,49: $26,31: $ 555,13° $236,25-
U.S. Offshore Platforr 132,24¢ —  132,24¢ 38,68¢ 10,80¢ 173,47 48,27:
International Service 151,39: — 151,39 13,12¢ 20,33¢ 254,94( 23,157
515,27¢ 80¢ 516,08’ 82,30¢ 57,45¢ 983,55: 307,68
Real Estati 8,52t 1,491 10,01¢ 5,06¢ 1,84« 26,56 3,181
Other 28,07¢ — 28,07¢ — 2,147 217,20( 1,19¢
Eliminations — (2,300 (2,300 — — — —
Total $551,87¢ $ — $551,87¢ $ 87,37: $61,447 $1,227,31. $312,06-
| | | | | | |
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The following table reconciles segment operatingfipto income before taxes and equity in inconusg) of affiliates as reported on the
Consolidated Statements of Income (in thousands).

Years Ended September 3(C 2004 2003 2002
Segment operating pro $ 20,72¢ $ 66,58¢ $ 87,37
Unallocated amount:
Income from investmen 27,60: 7,95: 28,07¢
Corporate and administrative expel (24,49¢) (25,650) (20,39)
Interest expens (12,69 (12,289 (980)
Corporate depreciatic (3,00%) (2,36]) (2,149
Other corporate expen (132) (300 (711)
Total unallocated amoun (22,729 (32,647 3,841
Income before income taxes and equity in incomssjlof affiliates $ 8,00C $ 33,94 $91,22(
| I |

The following tables present revenues from extecnatomers and long-lived assets by country basdtelocation of service provided (in
thousands).

Years Ended September 30, 2004 2003 2002
Revenue:

United State: $470,23( $ 405,47. $400,48
Venezuele 56,27¢ 31,76: 50,76:
Ecuadot 43,54( 50,78: 47,50:
Colombia 3,70¢ 6,081 11,61:
Other Foreigr 47,17¢ 21,18t 41,51¢
Total $620,92¢ $ 515,28 $551,87¢
| | ]

Long-Lived Assets
United State: $799,20° $ 867,36! $698,31¢
Venezuelz 85,33¢ 75,17¢ 72,63(
Ecuadot 46,80¢ 46,77¢ 49,35
Colombia 9,33¢ 12,98¢ 14,33¢
Other Foreigr 57,98t 55,89¢ 62,80"
Total $998,67- $1,058,20! $897,44!
| | ]

Long-lived assets are comprised of property, pdeut equipment.

Revenues from one company doing business withgheact drilling segment accounted for approximafi€.8 percent, 15.7 percent, and
16.3 percent of the total consolidated revenuemduhe years ended September 30, 2004, 2003,@0%] Pespectively. Revenues from
another company doing business with the contrallindrsegment accounted for approximately 10.7cpat, 14.6 percent, and 14.7 percer
total consolidated revenues in the years endede8dgatr 30, 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively. Rmsfrom another company doing
business with the contract drilling segment accedfior approximately 8.4 percent, 11.5 percent,h8 percent of total consolidated
revenues in the years ended September 30, 2008, 260 2002, respectively. Collectively, the reabies from these customers were
approximately $28.6 million and $36.0 million atgBamber 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
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NOTE 16 SUBSEQUENT EVENT
In November 2004, the Company sold two conventi@ @00 horsepower rigs from its U.S. land fleetddotal of $23.9 million.
NOTE 17 SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITE D)

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

2004 1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter
Revenue: $140,45¢  $151,18¢ $147,87- $181,41(
Asset impairment charg — — — 51,51¢
Gross profit (loss 24,66 23,12« 18,63¢ (8,069)
Net income (loss 6,58¢ 6,04¢ 4,34 (12,629
Basic net income (loss) per common sh A3 A2 .0¢ (.25
Diluted net income (loss) per common shi A3 A2 .0¢ (.25)

2003 1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter
Revenue: $113,310  $126,32! $137,02! $138,62¢
Gross profit 14,02: 19,02 26,78t¢ 27,40
Net income 607 2,574 8,16 6,53(
Basic net income per common she .01 .0t 1€ 13
Diluted net income per common she .01 .0t 1€ 13

Gross profit (loss) represents total revenuesdpssating costs and depreciation.

The sum of earnings per share for the four quarteng not equal the total earnings per share foy#ae due to changes in the average nu
of common shares outstanding.

Net income in the first quarter of 2004 has begnsied upward from amounts previously reported fgyraximately $1.0 million ($0.02 pt
share, on a diluted basis) to reflect a non-mogegain on the conversion of shares of common stéekcompany investee pursuant to that
investee being acquired. All future public filingdl reflect this change.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, the net logsudes an after-tax gain on sale of availables@le securities of $8.1 million, $0.16 per
share, on a diluted basis.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, the net logsudes an after-tax asset impairment charge pfagmately $32 million, $0.63 per share, on
a diluted basis.

Net income in the fourth quarter of 2003 includéer-tax gains on sale of available-for-sale securiie$3.2 million, $0.06 per share, on a
diluted basis.

Net income in the fourth quarter of 2003 includesatie -tax equity loss in loss from affiliates of $2.0liion, $0.04 per share, on a diluted
basis.
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Stockholders’ Meeting

The annual meeting of stockholders will be heldvarch 2, 2005. A formal notice of the meeting, tibge with a proxy statement and form
of proxy will be mailed to shareholders on or ahdanuary 27, 2005.

Stock Exchange Listing

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. Common Stock is tradedr@New York Stock Exchange with the ticker symidéP.” The newspaper abbreviati
most commonly used for financial reporting is “H&rmOptions on the Company’s stock are also tramethe New York Stock Exchange.

Stock Transfer Agent and Registrar
As of December 3, 2004, there were 860 record nsloeHelmerich & Payne, Inc. common stock as didig the transfer agent’s records.

Our Transfer Agent is responsible for our sharetotdcords, issuance of stock certificates, aniligion of our dividends and the IRS
Form 1099. Your requests, as shareholders, comzpthése matters are most efficiently answeredooyesponding directly with The
Transfer Agent at the following address:

UMB Bank

Security Transfer Division

928 Grand Blvd., 13th Floor

Kansas City, MO 64106

Telephone: (800) 884-4225
(816) 860-5000

Available Information

Quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, earnings releamss financial statements are made available omtlastor relations section of the
Company’'s Web site. Also located on the investtatiens section of the Company’s Web site are aedarporate governance documents,
including the following: the charters of the conmteds of the Board of Directors; the Company’s CaafmGovernance Guidelines; the Code
of Ethics for Principal Executive Officer and Semkénancial Officers; certain Audit Committee Piees and a description of the means by
which employees and other interested persons maynemicate certain concerns to the Company’s BofiRirectors, including the
communication of such concerns confidentially andreymously via the Company’s ethics hotline at 0-205-4913. Quarterly reports,
earnings releases, financial statements and theusacorporate governance documents are also biaflee of charge upon written request.

Annual CEO Certification

The annual CEO Certification required by SectioBA02(a) of the New York Stock Exchange Listed CampManual was provided to the
New York Stock Exchange on or about March 12, 2

Direct Inquiries To:

Investor Relations
Helmerich & Payne, Inc.
1437 South Boulder Avenue
Tulsa, Oklahoma 74119
Telephone: (918) 742-5531

Internet Address: http://www.hpinc.com
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EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We consent to the incorporation by referemceis Annual Report (Form 10-K/A Amendment Noo2Helmerich & Payne, Inc. of our
report dated November 23, 2004, included in theA2®nual Report to Shareholders of Helmerich & Raync.

We also consent to the incorporation by refeeein the Registration Statements (Form S-8 N®$5239, 333-34939 and 333-63124)
pertaining, respectively, to the Helmerich & Payime, 1990 Stock Option Plan, 1996 Stock IncenBan and 2000 Stock Incentive Plan of
our report dated November 23, 2004, with respettiéaconsolidated financial statements of Helmegidhayne, Inc. incorporated by
reference in the Annual Report (Form 10-K/A Amendirgo. 2) for the year ended September 30, 2004.

ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Tulsa, Oklahoma

March 11, 2005






Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION
I, Hans Helmerich, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Amendment No. 2 to the annegabrt on Form 1-K/A of Helmerich & Payne, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report doesamtain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact necess
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmislieading with respect to the
period covered by this annual repc

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ agimer financial information included in this amhuveport, fairly present in all matet
respects the financial condition, results of operst and cash flows of the Registrant as of, andlie periods presented in this annual
report;

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officers and ¢ aesponsible for establishing and maintainingldgoe controls and procedures [as
defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(e) and 15-15(e)] for the Registrant and ha

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatmeg to the Registrant, including its consolidhsibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durihg tperiod in which this annual report is being preg;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registranselasure controls and procedures and presentidsimnnual report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyéehlis annual report based on such
evaluation; ant

c) disclosed in this annual report any change irRégistrant’s internal control over financial refiag that occurred during the
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Reggts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeport) that has materially affected,
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, thed#stran’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officers and balisclosed, based on our most recent evaluafioriesnal control over financial
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and thetazainmittee of the Registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material wealgessin the design or operation of internal corara@r financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regigd’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involuesnagement or other employees who have a sigmifiote in the Registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting

/s/ Hans Helmerich
Hans Helmerich, Chief Executive Offict
March 16, 2005







Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION
I, Douglas E. Fears, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Amendment No. 2 to the annegadrt on Form 1-K/A of Helmerich & Payne, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report doesamtain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact necess
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisieading with respect to the
period covered by this annual repc

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ agimer financial information included in this amhuveport, fairly present in all matet
respects the financial condition, results of operst and cash flows of the Registrant as of, andlie periods presented in this annual
report;

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officers and ¢ aesponsible for establishing and maintainingldgoe controls and procedures [as
defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(e) and 15-15(e)] for the Registrant and ha

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoitgs designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatmeg to the Registrant, including its consolidhsibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durihg tperiod in which this annual report is being preg;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registranselasure controls and procedures and presentidsimnnual report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyéehlis annual report based on such
evaluation; ant

c) disclosed in this annual report any change irRégistrant’s internal control over financial refiog that occurred during the
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Reggts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeport) that has materially affected,
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, thed#stran’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officers and balisclosed, based on our most recent evaluafioriesnal control over financial
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and thetarainmittee of the Registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material wealg®ssin the design or operation of internal corara@r financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regigd’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involuesnagement or other employees who have a sigmifioke in the Registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting

/s/ Douglas E. Fear:
Douglas E. Fears, Chief Financial Offic
March 16, 2005







Exhibit 32

Certification of CEO and CFO Pursuant to 18 U.S.CSection 1350, As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 thie Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002

In connection with Amendment No. 2 to the Annuap®&e of Helmerich & Payne, Inc. (the “Company”) Barm 10-K/A for the period
ending September 30, 2004 as filed with the Seearind Exchange Commission on the date hereofRigort”), Hans Helmerich, as Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, and Douglas EarBgas Chief Financial Officer of the Company helagreby certifies, pursuant to 18
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Se@fi6rof the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, to the bébis knowledge, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of4]1 2®1d

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial cbodiand result of operations of the
Company

/sl Hans Helmerich /s/ Douglas E. Fears
Hans Helmerict Douglas E. Feat
Chief Executive Office Chief Financial Office

March 16, 200: March 16, 200:



